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Name of enterprise: Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembl}'?ojifflizneta Bl ygfeion: 920

No.:05/BB-DHDCD

Company

Pia chi: No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward, Le Chan District,
Hai Phong City, Vietnam

Business code: 0200155561

Meeting time: Starting from 8:30 a.m. on April 05, 2025

Meeting location: Company Head Office, No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong

Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City, Vietnam
General Meeting According to the approved Agenda of 2025 Annual General
Agenda and Content:  Meeting of Sharcholders (attached to this Minutes)
Chairperson of the Mr. Do Huy Dat - Chairman of the Board of Directors for the

General Meeting: 2021-2026 term
Secretariat of the Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Ha
General Meeting: Ms. Le Thi Minh Hang

GENERAL MEETING PROCESS (in chronological order):

A. GENERAL MEETING OPENING PROCEDURES

- Ms. Vu Thi Luong Dung - Member of the Board of Directors, on behalf of the
Organizing Committee, opened the General Meeting and announced the Board of
Directors' proposal on personnel to run the General Meeting as follows:

The Presidium consists of:
1. Mr. Do Huy Dat - Chairman of the Board of Directors - Chairperson
2. Mr.Le Huu Canh - Member of Board of Directors, General Director
3. Mr. Ta Van Son - Member of Board of Directors, Chairman of Audit

Committee
Qualification Checking Committee, Vote Counting Committee:
1. Mr. Tran Van Chuyen - Head of the Committee
2. Mr. Vo Ngoc Anh - Deputy Head of the Committee
3. Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha - Member
4. Mr. Vu Ngoc Dinh - Member
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5. Ms. Le Thi Minh Hang - Member

General Meeting Secretariat:
1. Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Ha - Secretary of the General Meeting
2. Ms. Le Thi Minh Hang - Secretary of the General Meeting

The General Meeting voted 100% unanimously to approve the personnel work to
run the General Meeting according to the above list.

- Next, the General Meeting listened to the report of Mr. Tran Van Chuyen -
Head of the Shareholder Qualification Checking Committee reporting the results of the
shareholder qualification checking to attend the General Meeting as follows:

+ The total number of shareholders of the Company according to the final list,
made on March 12, 2025 is: 152 shareholders, representing: 8.027.780 shares,
corresponding to 100% of the voting shares of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company.

+ The total number of shareholders attending the General Meeting in person and
authorized representatives attending is: 44 shareholders (including 8 authorized
shareholders), holding: 7.608.621 shares, accounting for 94,8% of the voting shares of
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company.

+ Total number of shareholders not attending the General Meeting: 108
shareholders, holding 419.159 shares, accounting for 5,2% of the voting shares of Hai
Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company.

(List of shareholders and shareholder representatives attending the meeting is
attached to this Minutes.)

Pursuant to the Charter of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint
Stock Company, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Hai Phong
Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company with the above participants
has met the conditions to conduct the General Meeting validly.

The Organizing Committee introduces the Presidium to run the General Meeting
and the Secretariat to work.

Approval of the working regulations of the General Meeting, meeting
agenda:

1. Working regulations of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

2. Meeting agenda contents:

- Report on production and business results in 2024, production and business plan in
2025.

- Audited financial statements for 2024.

- Report on activities of the Audit Committee in 2024, 2025 task orientation.

- Report on activities of the Board of Directors in 2024, 2025 task orientation.
Approval of Statements:

- The profit distribution and dividend payment plan for 2024.

- Settlement of remuneration for the Board of Directors in 2024 and Board of Directors'
remuneration plan in 2025.




- Plan to increase charter capital in 2025.

- Selection of an independent auditing company to audit the Company's financial
statements for 2025.

- Statement Regarding amendment of Clause 3, Article 2 and Clause 1, Article 6 -
Company Charter.

- Discussion, comments of shareholders.

- Get the shareholders' vote

- Announcement of voting results of Shareholders.

- Approval of the Minutes, Resolutions of the General Meeting and Closing of the
General Meeting.

(Documents for the General Meeting have been posted on the Company's Website:
www.diennuochp.com.vn).

The General Meeting voted 100% unanimously to approve the Working
Regulations and the General Meeting Agenda.

B. CONTENTS PRESENTED AND APPROVED AT THE GENERAL
MEETING:

I. Approval of Report on production and business results in 2024, production and
business plan in 2025.

Mr. Le Huu Canh - Member of the Board of Directors, General Director
presented the Report (with detailed copy attached dated March 15, 2025) with some key
indicators as follows:

1. Production and business results in 2024:

- Total Revenue: 939.065 Million dong
+ Electricity Business: 906.404 Million dong
+ Clean water business: 17.476 Million dong
+ Other business: 15.185 Million dong
- Electricity Output: 374.290.000 KWh
- Water Output: 1.017.100 m3
- Power loss ratio: 4.1 %
- Water loss ratio: 5,1 %
- Profit before tax : 53.194 Million dong
- Submit Budget: 21.470 Million dong
- Dividend ratio:

+ Cash: 25 %

+ Shares: 25 %
- Average salary: 13.9 Million Dong/person/month

2. Production and Business Plan Indicators for 2025:

- Total Revenue: 1.200.000 Million dong
+ Electricity Business: 1.164.500 Million dong
+ Clean water business: 19.500 Million dong
+ Other business: 16.000 Million dong
- Electricity Output: 450.500.000 KWh
- Water Output: 1.127.000 m3

3

s S NI\



- Power loss ratio: 39 %

- Water loss ratio: 4,6 %
- Profit before tax: 56.000 Million dong
- Submit Budget: 24.000 Million dong
- Dividend ratio:
+ Cash: >20 %
+ Shares: =25 %
- Average salary: 15,0 Million Dong/person/month

* Investment work to renovate the power grid system:

- Construct 12 new substations, with a total capacity of 7.350 KVA.

- Increase capacity of 21 substations, with additional capacity of 4.510 KVA.

- Supplement, replace, and renovate low-voltage power line systems of
substations: 22,5 km.

- Supplement, replace electric pole system: 550 poles

- Replace electricity meters quantity: 26.500 units, of which electronic telemeters
are 25.000 units, sensor electricity meters are 1.500 units.

* Customer development work:

- Increase the number of electricity customers at Enterprises: 2.400 customers.

- Receive electricity customers at Branches: 3.650 customers.

- Increase the number of water customers at Enterprises: 250 customers.

* Investment capital plan for 2025: Estimated 41 billion dong.

- Construction of 12 additional substations in communes, wards: 7.5 billion dong.

- Capacity expansion of 21 substations: 4,5 billion dong.

- Supplement, upgrade and renovate low voltage lines and electric poles: 4,5

billion dong.

- Periodically replace and purchase electricity and water meters:18,0 billion dong.

- Repair, replacement, and inspection of equipment: 2,0 billion dong.

- Office repair, equipment procurement: 1,2 billion dong.

- Cost of organizing conference programs in 2025: 3,3 billion dong.

II. Approval of Audited Financial Statements for 2024.

Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha - Chief Accountant briefly presented the 2024 Financial
Statements audited by VACO Auditing Company Limited on March 14, 2025, with
some key indicators as follows:

- Revenue - Sales of Goods and ~ 937.408.787.887, dong
service rendering:

- Profit before tax: 53.194.131.318, dong
- Current Corporate income tax: 10.522.739.007, dong
- Deferred corporate income tax: 530.848.548, dong
- Profit after tax: 42.140.543.763, dong

(with detailed Report attached, dated March 14, 2025)

2018
ONG
e
WA PE'
DONC

HANT




III. Approval of the Audit Committee's Operation Report at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders.
Mr. Ta Van Son - Member of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Audit

Committee presented the Audit Committee's 2024 Operation Report and the orientation
and tasks for 2025 (with detailed report attached, dated March 15, 2025).

[V. Approval of the Board of Directors' 2024 Operation Report and 2025 Orientation and
Strategy

Mr. Do Huy Dat - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented the Board of Directors'
Operation Report in 2024, Orientation and Strategy in 20235 (with detailed report attached,
dated March 15, 202)5).

V. Approval of the profit distribution and dividend payment plan for 2024

Mr. Le Huu Canh - Member of Board of Directors, General Director presented the
specific plan as follows:
1.Profit distribution plan for 2024:

- Total accounting profit before tax: 53.194.131.318 dong
- Current corporate income tax: 10.522.739.488 dong
- Deferred corporate income tax: 530.848.548 dong
- Total profit after tax: 42.140.543.282 dong
- Profit divided among 3 Joint Ventures: 3.997.426.705 dong
- Remaining profit: 38.143.116.577 dong
- Provision for welfare reward fund (5%): 1.907.155.829 dong
- Remaining profit after tax: 36.235.960.748 dong
2. Dividend payment plan for 2024:

- First advance payment = 10%/Capital: 8.027.780.000 dong
- Second advance payment = 15%/Capital: 12.041.670.000 dong
3. Remaining undistributed profit in 2024: 16.166.510.748 dong

VI. Approval of the report on the settlement of the Board of Directors’
remuneration in 2024 and the Board of Directors' remuneration payment plan in
2025

Mr. Le Huu Canh - Member of the Board of Directors, General Director

presented (attached with the Statement dated March 17, 2025) specifically as follows:
1. Settlement of Board of Directors' remuneration in 2024: 1.014.000.000, dong.

(Amount in words. One billion, fourteen million dong only).

2. Board of Directors’ remuneration payment plan in 2025: 1.104.000.000, dong.

(Amount in words: One billion, one hundred and four million dong only).

VII. Approval of the Plan to issue shares to increase Charter Capital in 2025 from
the remaining undistributed profit after tax in 2024 for existing shareholders as
follows:

Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha - Chief Accountant presented (atfached with the
Statement dated March 14, 2025) specifically as follows:
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- Registered charter capital: 80.277.800.000, dong

- Expected increase in charter capital: 100.347.250.000, dong
- Total expected issuance value at par value: 20.069.450.000, dong
- Number of shares expected to be issued: 2.006.945, share

- Expected issuance rate:
+ Pay dividends in shares 25%/Charter capital
+ 01 existing share plus 0,25 new shares: 25%
- Expected source of capital: From the Company's remaining undistributed after-
tax profit, audited from the 2024 Financial Statements
- Expected time of implementation: Quarter 111/ 2025
- The company plans to issue: 2.006.945 shares to pay dividends to the
company's existing shareholders. The par value of the shares is 10.000, dong/share
- Plan for handling fractional shares: The number of shares issued to each
shareholder will be rounded down to the nearest unit, and the decimal number of
fractional shares (if any) will be canceled
- Assign the Board of Directors to be responsible for issuing 2.006.945 shares to
the State Securities Commission in accordance with the provisions of the Securities
Law, reporting the results of the share issuance. Amending the content of the Company
Charter (Clause 1, Article 6, stipulating the Charter Capital and the number of shares)
and at the same time carrying out the procedures to increase the Charter Capital with the
Department Finance of Hai Phong City after having the results of the share issuance in
accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law.

VIII. Approval of the selection of an independent auditing company to audit the
Company's financial statements for 2023

Mr. Ta Van Son - Member of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the Audit
Committee presented (attached with the Statement dated March 17, 2025) specifically
as follows:

Selecting an independent auditor to audit the Company's 2025 Financial
Statements is VACO Auditing Company Limited.

IX. Approval of the amendment of Clause 3, Article 2 and Clause 1, Article 6 -
Charter of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company.

Ms. Vu Thi Luong Dung - Member of the Board of Directors presented (attached
with the Statement dated March 12, 2025) specifically as follows:

Content of the amended charter:

Article,
Clause, Contents of current Charter Content of amendment

Section

Clause |3. The Company's registered head | 3. The Company's registered head
3 office is: office is:
Article 2 | - Head office address: No. 34 |- Head office address: No. 34
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Thien Loi Street, Nghia Xa Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City,
Vietnam.

Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City,
Vietnam.

Clause 1
Article 6

1. The Company's charter capital
is64.222.580.000 dong.

The total charter capital of the
Company is divided into 6.422.258
shares.

1. The Company's charter capital
is80.277.800.000 dong.

The total charter capital of the
Company is divided into 8.027.780
shares.

X. Discussion at the General Meeting
No shareholders have any comments.

C. VOTING ON CONTENTS FOR GENERAL MEETING’S OPINIONS (Minutes
of vote counting attached)

- Mr. Tran Van Chuyen - Head of the Vote Counting Committee presided over
the voting on the contents asking for the General Meeting's opinions.

- The General Meeting voted to approve the contents presented at the General
Meeting as above.

- Tea break and the Vote Counting Committee conducted the vote counting.

- After the Vote Counting Committee has completed its vote counting duties, the
Vote Counting Committee will announce the voting results for each content as follows:

Total number of votes issued: 45 votes, representing 7.612.371 shares,
accounting for: 100% of the number of voting shares attending the meeting.

Total number of votes received: 45 votes, representing 7.612.371 shares,
accounting for 100% of the number of voting shares attending the meeting.

Total number of shareholders not voting: 0 shareholders, representing 0 shares,
accounting for 0% of the number of voting shares attending the meeting.

Voting results:

Agree Disagree
Lo Voling contents Number of | Ratio | Number of | Ratio
shares held | (%) | shares held | (%)
1 Report on production and business
results in 2024, production and business | 7.612.371 | 100%
MLt .
2 Audited financial statements for 2024 7612371 | 100%
3 Report on activities of the Audit|
Committee in 2024, 2025 task| 7.612.371 | 100%
| orientation . N -
4 Rtaport on activities of the ]?aoard_ of | 7612371 | 100%
.| Directors in 2024, 2025 task orientation_| —
5 Profit distribution plan and dividend 7612371 | 100%
. |paymentplanfor2024 = | e
¢ | Reporton Board of Directors' 7612371 | 100%
_________________ _remuneration in 2024 and Board of "
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| Directors' remuneration planin2025 [ [ [ [
7 | Plan to increase charter capital in 2025 7.612.371 | 100%

3 Selection of anmdependent auditing
company to audit the Company's| 7.612.371 | 100%
| financial statements for 2025

o | Statement "Regarding amendment of
Clause 3, Article 2 and Clause 1, | 7.612.371 | 100%
_| Article 6 - Company Charter” |
10 The 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders authorizes the Board of
Directors to implement the Resolution | 7.612.371 | 100%
of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

D. GENERAL MEETING CLOSING PROCEDURES:

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Ha - The Secretary of the General Meeting read the
Minutes before the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval by the
General Meeting.

- Ms. Le Thi Minh Hang - The Secretary of the General Meeting reads the

Resolution before the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval by
the General Meeting.

The General Meeting of Shareholders voted 100% unanimously to approve the
entire text of the Minutes and Resolution of the General Meeting right at the General
Meeting.

Chairperson of the General Meeting Mr. Do Huy Dat declared the General
Meeting closed..

This meeting minutes is made into 05 (five) copies with equal legal value, the
General Meeting ends at 11:30 a.m on the same day./.

THE SECRETARIAT

% |

Nguyen Thi Thu Ha Le Thi Minh Hang Do Huy Dat




HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MINUTES OF CHECKING QUALIFICATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
ATTENDING THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH 14, dated June 17, 2020.

Pursuant to Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14, dated November 26, 2019.

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to Decision No. 02/0D-HDQT dated February 20, 2025 "Regarding the
establishment of Organizing Committee, Qualification Checking Committee, Vote
Counting Committee, Secretariat of the 2025 General Meeting of Shareholders” of the
Board of Directors of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company

Today, April 05, 2025, at the Head office of Hai Phong Electricity Water
Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company - Address: No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An
Duong Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City, Hai Phong Electricity Water
Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company held the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders. The Shareholder Qualification Checking Committee includes the
following names:

1. Mr. Tran Van Chuyen - Head of the Committee

2. Mr. Vo Ngoc Anh - Deputy Head of the Committee
3. Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha - Member

4. Mr. Vu Ngoc Dinh - Member

5. Ms. Le Thi Minh Hang - Member

The Shareholder Qualification Checking Committee has conducted of
the qualification checking of shareholders attending the 2025 Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders with the following specific results:

1. The total number of shareholders of the Company according to the final
list, made on March 12, 2025 is: 152 shareholders, representing: 8.027.780 shares,
corresponding to 100% of the voting shares of Hai Phong Electricity Water
Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company.

2. The total number of shareholders attending the General Meeting in person
and authorized representatives attending is: 44 shareholders (including 08
authorized shareholders), holding: 7.608.621 shares, accounting for 94,8% of the
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voting shares of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company.

3. Total number of shareholders not attending the General Meeting: 108
shareholders, holding 419.159 shares, accounting for 5,2% of the voting shares of
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law; the Company Charter and based on
the results of the shareholder qualification checking, the Shareholder

Qualification Checking Committee concludes as follows:

1. The convening of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders has
been conducted in accordance with legitimate procedures.

2. With the share ownership ratio of shareholders present in person and
through authorized representatives attending the meeting accounting for 94,8% of
the total number of voting shares.

3. All shareholders are eligible to attend and vote at this General Meeting of
Shareholders.

With the above conditions, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company is eligible to be held validly.

The minutes was made at 08:30 a.m, April 05, 2025 and signed by members
of the Shareholder Qualification Checking Committee, who are responsible for the
legality of the contents in the minutes according to the provisions of the Law and
the Company's Charter.

Minutes of Checking qualification of shareholders was reported before the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

MEMBERS HEAD OF THE ITTEE

@ ... Vo Ngoc Anh
ﬁf/‘% Mai Thi Thanh Ha Tran Van Chuyen
...................... Vu Ngoc Dinh
U
i/ Le Thi Minh Hang
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51 |Trdn Vin Tuyén 031060004760 |Hoang Dong, Thiyy Nguyén, Hai Phong 3.641 | /f
52 |Trin Vin Xoan 031064004417 | Trdn Duong, Vinh Béo, Hai Phong 3.641 —
53  |Vii Hong Quén 031066003048 |Tan Hung Vinh Bao Hai Phong 3.641
54  |Vii Thi Huyén 030395322  [Nam Son, An Duong, Hai Phong 3.641
55 |Vii Thi Hong Nuong 031172006743 [148 L6 9 mé rong, Déang Hai, Hai An, Hai Phong 3.641
56 |Pan Hai Long 031075005487 [180B Chuia Hang, Hb Nam, Lé Chén 3.641 Lgn?/
57 |P6 Thi Thiy 031179007326 |Lién Am, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 3.641 ’
58 [Bui Van Thanh 031073002398 [S6 34 Thién Loi, Nghia Xa Hai Phong 3.462 " Mﬂ/
59 |Hoang Thi Thanh Xuan 040182000001 | Phit D6 ME Tri Tir Liém, Ha Noi 3.125
60 |Nguyén ThiLy 031782363  |S& 05/18/66 Nguyén Tudng Loan, Lé Chan, Hai Phong 3.095 -4;
61 |Nguyén Vin Chuyén 033060002332 [S& 26 Thanh Té, Hai An, Hai Phong 3.002 X




62 |Huynh Siu Nai 070172000040 [195/7 Binh Théi, P9, Q11, TP.Hb Chi Minh 2.968
63 |Bach Xuén Vinh 031055004804 |19 Hang Kénh, Lé Chéan, Hai Phong 2.915
64 |AMERICA LLC CAS5883 PO Box F43031, Freeport, Bahamas 2.906
65 |Nguyén Vin Hing 030092008169 T4 5 Khu 7, Giéng Péy, TP.Ha Long, Quang Ninh 2.600 %’_‘
66 |Nguy&n Hai Thanh 031079007348 |50 30 Negd Kim Hiic, Phutng Vinh Nigm, Quin L& Chén, 2.551
Hai Phong
67 |Nguyén Van Vuong 031059017776 |Sé 34 Thién Loi, Hai Phong 2.551 /#
JUSPOINT NOMINEES
68 (PTY) LTD CA7153 257 Oxford Road, Illovo, 2196 2.187
69 |Nguyén Van Tan 031072009636 |0 " 11, Cam L 7, phudng Hing Vuong, quin Hong 2.000
Bang, Hai Phong
70 |Vii Viét Tiép 031073005048 [SG 5/18/66 Nguyén Tudng Loan, Lé Chan, Hai Phong 2.000
71 |Lé Vin Quyén 031078004263 | Thon Thuong Trung, Liém An, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 1.816
e 0988800991 (2729) 372B/2 Hb Vin Hué, Phudng 9,
72 |Pham Nguyén Thuy Tu 024046572 Quéin, Pha Nhuan, TP Hb Chi Minh 1.816
73 |Pham Vin Thu 031060018245 [Hong TH4i An Duong Hai Phong 1.816 /
74  |Quan Thi Hanh 031177013365 [S6 11/23/211 Tén Pire Thing, Lé Chan, Hai Phong 1.816 W
75 |Trdn Vin Quan 031072005050 [S6 34 Thién Loi, Hai Phong 1.816
76  |Trin Vin Tién 031088006712 [Tan Hung, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 1.816
77  |Pinh Vin Diing 031060001403 [Chanh Trén, Tam Da, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 1.816




78 |DPoan Xuéan The 031053001412 |Vinh Quang, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 1.816
79 [Nguyén Thi Hanh 031189010362 |Sé 34 Thién Léi, Hai Phong 1.663
80 |Pham Tuén Luong 100666560 | Tap thé Péng Bun - L& Chan - Hai Phong 1.456
81 |Pham Thi T4 Uyén 031191007482 13{1 126 Nguyén Binh Khiém, Dong Hai 2, Hai An, Hai 1425 | . A—
Phong
82 |Cao Hitu Tim 031059004228 (Pai Ha, Kién Thuy, Hai Phong 1.270
83 [Nguyén Thi Thu Trang 31165006729 |22 240 NeP384 Lych Tray, Bilng Giang, Neo Quyen, 1.262
Hai Phong

84 |Trin Ngoc Uyén Vy 079183025132 i}ﬁlﬁ“"“g =t St Lo Jon il Tr. oty 1.250
85 |Lé Hang Hai 031064004131 ]zc%?g ph6 Trang Tién, Quin Hoan Kiém, thanh pho Ha 1200

P Nha 6ng Nhin - sé nha 31 ngd 299 dudmg Bui Thi Tir
86 |L 0360 . ! , : .

v Hing o SO0TRO0SB1S | \Thien, phitrdng Dok HAL 1, qid Bigt An, TP Phbtg S
87 |Mai Thi Thanh Ha 031171004308 |S&6 67/106 Lé Lai, Hai Phong 1.120 rlw/é{

§re 4
28 Krungthai Xspring Securities CA4050 16th Floor, Liberty Square Bu:_ldmg, 287 Silom Road, L112 {f
Co.,Ltd Bangrak, Bangkok 10500, Thailand
89 |Huynh Dirc 022030777 26 Hoc Lac, P14, Q5 TP HCM 1.088
90 |DPang Huy Hoang 031076006065 |S6 34 Thién L6i, An Duong, Lé Chan, Hai Phong 1.088
91  |Nguyén Dinh Duong 031081025074 |Trung Lép, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 947 ///W
i

92  [Nguy2n Van Ninh 030079011687 |Lac Long Kinh Mén Hai Duong 902
93  [Nguyén Pang Tuyén 030875546 S6 263 Trin Nguyén Han, Hai Phong 726




79/8 duong 475, phuong Phude Long B, TP.Thu Bic,

94  |Truong Thi Ngoc Thanh 075188011895 TP.H& Chi Minh 700 .
95 |D4 Van Tuyén 031072004252 (S 6/44 Dinh Nhu, Niém Nghia, L& Chén, Hai Phong 658 0) %/ _
T
96 |T6 Thanh Hai 030763683  |Sé 12A/84 Phuong Luu, Van M§ Hai Phong 540
97 |Banh Tay Ho 070067000031 [195/7 Binh Théi, P,9, Q,11, TP,H6 Chi Minh 500
9% |Ngd Thi Phuong Auh 031190007407 |28/4/170 Pham Hitu Diéu, Niém Nehta, Lé Chan, Hai - @
Phong 4
HAKANSSON GUSTAF
99 OLOF VILHELM [1C3045 Torstenssonsgatan 13, 11456 Stockholm, Sweden 468
100 |Vii Ngoc Pinh 031078000688 |Van Tra, An Dong, An Duong, Hai Phong 452 %f/
101 |L& Thi Minh H.%mg 031190008714 |Sé 22/45 Cho DPén, An Duong, Lé Chéan, Hai Phong 426 LL_@{—
MIRAE ASSET DAEWOO s g
102 CO.LTD CA2146 26, Eulji-ro 5-gil, jung-gu, Seoul, Korea 390
o s 20G2, khu B Anh Diing 4, Pham Vin Déng, phuong Anh
h'l ;
103 |Trinh Thanh Tlng 031200000600 Diing, quin Dwong Kinh, thanh phé Hai Phong 375 '
104 |V3 Ngoc Anh 031071013031 [Sé 11/23/211 Tén Dic Thing, Lé Chéan, Hai Phong 02T W
105 | Vii Minh Son 020069004875 |Ap 1C, Phudc Thai, Long Thanh, Dong Nai 300
106 |Vii Xuan Truong GsaGs0zEaay | o Lang Dong, XA Tra Giang, HuybuKicn Xaong, 300
tinh Thai Binh
107 |Lai Quang Diing 031088012707 S{{-‘S‘S IP G4, khu Anh Diing, Anh Diing, Duong Kinh, 250
Hai Phong
108 |Nguyén Thi Phugng 036186005579 | Tan Lién, Tan Lién, Vinh Bao, Hai Phong 200 'j_/
109 [Tk Viin Chuyda 03607900333 |0 313 L8-K7. KNO Hoang Huy, An Déng, An Duong, - % 2

TP.Hai Phong




110 |Lé Anh Pao 030987102 S6 34 Thién Loi, Lé Chan, Hai Phong 191
111 |Cao Qudc Huy 030715353 Téan Hung Vinh Bao Hai Phong 175
112 |Hoang Thi Thanh 030110277 S6 30 chg Hang Dong Hai, Hai Phong 175
113 |Trdn Thi Anh Tuyét 031163014056 |S6 211 L6 9 Dang Hai, Hai An, Hai Phong 175
114 [Bui Van Vo 010228763 Phong 211, 195B2 Déi Can, Quan Ba Dinh, Ha nbi 172
115 |Phan Tién Quy 031262203  |ddng thai an duong hai phong 152
116 |D& Vin Vinh 031061001162 |SS 34 Thién Léi, Hai Phong 152
117 |Vuong Vi Viét Ha 060088000179 ]ﬁ Ealer Na, Fatrtig Ung B, Qe Sxing Be, Ha 125
118 |L& Manh Hing 038079000275 372}5 C:[“] ZHC. KDT Kim Véan Kim L, Pai Kim, Hoang 116
Mai, Ha Néi
119 |Bui Van Minh 038090021554 [ Thén Thing Tay Ngu Loc, Hau Loc, Thanh Hoa 100
120 [Ngd Quang Pat 031089018472 Ar'l‘Tu,‘Xﬁ Khéi Nghia, Huyén Tién Lang, Thanh Pho 100
Hai Phong
121 |Thai Quéc Téo 042099009869 |Cém Linh, Cdm Xuyén, Ha Tinh 100
122 |Nguyén Pirc Nam 100979150  [Xuén Son, Déng Triéu, Quang Ninh. 81
123 |L.& Anh Tuin 001074669937 Sci 5]:‘ Ngo 536 Minh Khai - Vinh Tuy - Hai Ba Trung - 77
Ha No1
124 |Pham Da Huong 001182000678 |15 Ly Nam Dé, Hang M4, Hoan Kiém, Ha Nai 77
125 |T6 Thi Phuong Ha 033167000509 {120 Nguyén Du, Hai Ba Trung, Ha Noi 77




126 [Nguyén Dic Thién 030081005626 |S& nha 139 Tan Xuin, DPéng Ngac, Bic Tir Liém, Ha Néi 47
127 |Ding Ngoc Linh 031054004935 VP?3-341 KBT Viét Phat, duomg Duong Pinh Nghe, Lé 47
Chan, Hai Phong
128 [Nguyén Vin Anh 038080016907 [170/C/1 td 4A, Ap 1, Hoi Nghia, Tan Uyén, Binh Duong 43
129 |Bui Van Thu 031063001383 |S6 1/79/85 Nguyén Hiru Tué, Hai Phong 41
130 |Vi Thu Phong 030919069 An E)E‘mg, An Duong, Hai Phong 41
131 |Lé Quy Hoa 101323860  [S6 3, Ton Thit Thuyét, Dich Vong, Ciu Gidy, Ha Néi 38

AR L £ P
132 |Pham Thi Loan 030030885 Bzf.n KT ndi bo, NHDTPTVN Tang 12A so 191 Ba Triéu, 35
Ha Noi
R .. B15.19 SAIGON TOWN s6 83/16 Thoai Ngoc Hau, p.
133 |Nguyén Hong Hai 031075007403 Hod Thanh, q. Tén Phi, TP.HS Chi Minh 31
134 |Lé& Tuén Anh 001079000052 |SO 57NB Ba Triéu, Hang Bai, Hoan Kiém, Ha Néi 25
135 |Nguy&n Thi Hai Yén 031282098  |S6 34 Thién Loi, Nghia X&, Hai Phong 25
136 [Nguyén Hong Hai 030988326  |TH 48 Khu S Vinh Niém, Lé Chan, Hai Phong 18
137 |Ta Thi Nea 022184001580 5'16 Ly :Fhucr}g Kiét, phuomg Cira Ong, TP Cam Pha, 8
tinh Quang Ninh
138 |Nguyén Thé Thanh 033096003852 |Thi trén Vin Giang 12
139 Vi Tir Quén 030992155 S6 8/50 Ha Ly, Hai Phong 12
140 |Hoang Dirc Manh 040205005745 'E’:}on Dinh Thiang, Pinh Son, huyén Anh Son, tinh Nghé 5
141 |Nguyén Thi Lan 031182012376 |S6 34 Thién Loi Hai Phong 2




142 |Trén Ngoc Pé 091066001011 |349 Hung Phi, F9, Quén 8, HCM, Viet Nam 2
143 |[KATO TAKANORI IA6289 36 Kamimizunocyo Setoshi Aichi, Japan 2
144 |Lé Thi Thay Trang 312151426 56 Hoang Diéu 2, Q.Thu Dirc, TP.HCM 1
145 |Nguyén Anh Tuin 080092013664 |261, Nguyén, Théng, Phuong 3, Tan An, Long An 1
146 |Nguyén Minh Thing 031068001117 [S6 1/287 Hang Kénh, Hai Phong 1
: 5 geaa Phong 1904 toa nha Eurowindow 27 Trian Duy Hung
147 é 68 A . 2
Nguyen Sinh Diing Thing 001072018688 P.Trung Hoa , Q.Cu Gidy , TP Ha Noi 1
148 |Nguyén Siéu Min 086078013702 iﬂ;; g Hing, KO 2, 7,5, TE Vinh Long, Mk I
. ) Can ho A1009 CC Hoang Anh Gia Lai 1, sd 357 Lé Vin
14 é : 079082005 : =
2 [Pipuyen Tiang Chin 871 |1 tomg, Phung Tan Quy, Quan 7, TPHCM :
150 |Nguyén Ping Ting 001087010637 |76 Ngb 97 Van Cao, Q.ba Dinh, Ha Noi 1
151 |Vii Thi Van 031184001706 So‘?.D duong 12 An Duong 1, An DPong, An Duong, Hai 1
Phong
152 |Vii Van Dang 036081002141 34‘:’3A 'Bal.f Cat 2, Phudng 14, Quén Tén Binh, Thanh Phé |
HO6 Chi Minh
TONG CONG 8.027.780
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boj o The 2025 Annual General Meetmg of Shareholders

2024=with the unified and drastic direction of the Party and State on the
implementation of perfecting the innovation of mechanisms, implementing the revolution
in streamlining the organization of the political system, promoting administrative
procedure reform, reducing costs, creating breakthroughs to promote the development of
localities and the country. Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company has also creatively applied mechanisms, built strategies suitable to the general
development situation of the country, gradually firmly overcame difficulties, grew steadily
and successfully completed the 2024 production and business plan according to the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of General Directors, I would like to report to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders and shareholders on the production and business results
of 2024 and the orientations and tasks for 2025 with the following contents:

PART 1: PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024

A. Performance indicators

Or. Indicator Implementation | Implementation | Growth
2023 2024 rate (%)
1 | Total Revenue (Million Dong) _802.674 FalU6S | 117
1 | Electricity Business 767.375 906.404 | 118%
An"Dilong Enterprxse " 316. 497 352.2"55 111%
- | Thuy Nguyen Enterprise 119.093 ~131.849 | 111%
- | Vinh Bao Enterprise Coo788|  110.659 | 111%
- | HaLong Branch 28.035 45.662 | 163%
‘Hai Duong Branch 23.745 35.498 149%"___._“
~ - | Hung Yen Branch 180219 | 230481 | 128%
9 | Clean water business 17.103 17.476 102% __
_ | An Duong, Thuy Nguyen 11.571 12925 | 112%
| Enterprise ;
- | Ha Long Branch 5.532 - 4.551 82%
3| Other revenue 18.196 (15185| 83%
II." O“tP“t -
1 | Electricity Output (KWh) 337.969.000 | 374.290.000 | 111%
---- - | An Duong Enterprise 138.866.000 | 145. 226.000 IOS%_________
- | Thuy Nguyen Enterprise 56.708.000 58.935.000 | 104%
- _Vl_nHBaoEntcrprlse 49 303 000 ~51.197.000 T 104%
- | Ha Long Branch 10.030.000 |  15.974.000 | 159%
- | Hai Duang Branch' 0. 102 OU{}N 12.962.000 142%
- | Hung Yen Branch 73960000 | 89.996.000| 122%
2 | Water Output (m ) 1 043 000 .1 017. 100 98%
- | An Duong Enterprise 824000 |  837.500| 102%
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- |HaLongBranch | 219000 179600 | 82% |

IIT | Loss ratio (%)

1 | Power loss ratio | 4,1% 4,1% o
‘An DuongEnteI'prlse T 4,9% 4,8% -OI %
o= ThuyNguyEIl Ente_rprlse 4,8% 4,89”0 0,1% ”
| Vinh Bao Exterprise - T T e
- | HaLong Branch o 8,0% 6’6% -1,4%

- | Hai Duong Branch T22% 22% | -
- | Hung Yen Branch i 13% 1,7% | 04%

T Dions Enferpriss — L o i

- | HaLong Branch os% [ 26% 99%

Profit before corporate income |

V' | tax (Million Dong) I i s sl
1 [Comporateincometax | 10.682[ 11054 | 103%
2| Profit after tax Lo o ~37.394 4214[} 113%

V__| Submit Budget (Million Dong) 18527 21.470 116%

Average salary (Million
Vi Dnng/pgerson/’momh) 12,6 133 o
T s S
VII | - Cash: + 25% +25%
- Bonus shares: +25%

B. Investment implementation
1. Investing in and renovating the power grid system:

In 2024, the Company has focused on human resources and capital to invest in
construction, supplement the substation system, increase transformer capacity, replace and
supplement low-voltage main lines to ensure electricity quality to serve customers.

1.1 Investing in new construction, repair and capacity upgrade of substations, total capacity
of transformers put into use: 10.570 KVA.

+ Invest in construction and put into use 14 substations at managed enterprises. In which:

- An Duong Power Plant 7 stations, in An Dong, Dong Thai, Hong Thai wards and An Hai
ward.

- Thuy Nguyen Power Plant 5 stations, in Hoa Binh, Hoang Lam and Lap Le wards.

- Vinh Bao Power Plant 2 stations, in Vinh Hai and Tam Cuong communes.

+ Implement capacity increase of 10 substations:

- Increase capacity of 2 substations which are assets of the Company in An Duong district.
- Coordinate with Electricity to increase capacity of 8 substations in Vinh Bao district.

+ Deploying construction of Minh Kha 4 substation with capacity of 630KVA in Dong
Thai ward.

1.2 Supplement and upgrade low voltage cable trunk system, total 29.4 KM. In which:
- An Duong Enterprise: 14,6 KM.

- Thuy Nguyen Enterprise: 5.3 KM.

- Vinh Bao Enterprise: 9,5 KM.
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1.3 Concentrating human resources and capital to overcome the consequences of typhoon
Yagi and restore power supply to people:

+ Repair and replace a number of damaged electric poles, medium voltage lines, RMU
cabinets and transformer stations causing local power outages in communes, wards and
urban areas.

+ Replace low voltage power poles that are broken or fallen due to the typhoon and power
poles that do not meet technical standards. Quantity: 520 poles.

1.4 Coordinate with the Project Management Boards of districts to implement the model
new rural construction program in the area.:

An Dong ward, An Duong district.
Hoang Lam ward, Thuy Nguyen city.

Communes: Tan Hung, Vinh Hung, Vinh Hoa, Lien Am, Vinh Hai, Thang Thuy, Tam
Cuong in Vinh Bao district.

2. New customer installation, replacement and inspection of measuring equipment:
2.1 Number of new customers generated:
- New customers registering to use electricity in communes and wards: 2,090 customers.

- Receiving and signing electricity purchase contracts with customers in urban project
areas: 3,756 customers.

New customers using water: 128 customers

2.2 Perform replacement and inspection of electric and water meters:

a. Electricity meter:

+ Replace electronic meters with remote data transmission 14.691 meters.

- Enterprises: 11.631 meters.
- Branches: 3.060 meters.
+ Periodically replace induction meter: 1.700 meters.
b. Water meters: Replace and inspect 539 units.
3. Investment, office repair and equipment purchase.
- Complete the construction of a new office for Thuy Nguyen Power Enterprises in Hoa
Binh Ward, Thuy Nguyen City.
- Rent and repair the office of Nghe An Branch.
- Purchase office equipment and vehicles for Branches and Enterprises
II1. Business market development work
1. Deploying the signing of upstream power purchase contracts with Kien Giang

Electricity to directly manage, operate and supply electricity to customers at
SunGroup's GateWay Project in Phu Quoc.

2. Sign the Electricity Business Cooperation Contract with Viet Lao Economic
Coorperation General Company at Ecopark Vinh urban area, complete legal
procedures to put the Branch into operation.

3. Negotiate and receive electricity and water systems at 2 new urban area projects: Hoang
Huy New City, Thuy Nguyen City and 80 Ha Ly residential area project, Hong Bang
district, Hai Phong city.

IV. Management, operation and business

- Implement the conversion of clean water prices from March 1, 2024 according to the

decision of the Hai Phong City People's Committee regulating the price of clean water for

daily life.
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- Implement the adjustment of electricity prices according to the decision of the Ministry of
Industry and Trade to increase by an average of 4.8% from October 11, 2024.

- Strengthen the inspection, supervision, maintenance and repair of the power grid system
and clean water supply system, which has brought good results in the management and
operation process:

+ The asset system operates safely, the number of incidents has decreased significantly,
and repair costs have been reduced.

+ Control the rate of electricity and water loss.
+ Stable electricity quality, no area is overloaded.

- Connect and exchange information with customers through technology applications.
Complete the construction of the Customer Service App with advanced utilities and
functions, ensuring customer satisfaction in terms of Output control, payment management,
and timely updating of service information.

- Complete the construction and put into operation the DNC Server System to meet the
Company's management requirements.

- Implement the project to replace remote data collection equipment, integrate automatic
meter data systems with many types.

Promote non-cash payments, develop payment networks through banks, automatic debt

settlement and online payment applications. The rate of customers making non-cash
payments reached: 95%.

V. Safety - Industrial hygiene - Fire prevention:
- Implement and closely monitor units, departments and individuals to properly implement

the Electrical Safety Procedures according to national technical regulations on electrical
safety.

- Open training courses and issue training certificates on occupational safety and hygiene,
prevention and rescue for staff and employees.

- There were no serious occupational accidents in the past year.

VI. Implement policies for employees

- In 2024, 14 people were recruited and signed labor contracts; 6 people were terminated
from labor contracts and laid off.

- The salary and salary allowance mechanism is suitable for the job, working location, and
qualifications of each employee. In 2024, the average salary for employees was reviewed
and adjusted to increase by 10% and the insurance contribution rate for employees was
adjusted.

- Implement training programs with on-site training and send employces to attend
professional training courses to improve their professional qualifications, skills and
communication skills, meeting customer requirements.

- Create a good working environment, organize regular health check-ups, ensure that
employees are healthy enough to perform assigned tasks.

- Organize and implement the DNC Family Day program to encourage and commend the
achievements of employees.

- Organize study trips on electricity business management, combined with sightseeing and
vacations for officers and employees.

PART 2 - DIRECTIONS FOR PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS TASKS 2025

Based on the business performance in 2024; Based on factors affecting the investment,
operation and business of electricity and water; Based on the current actual situation of the
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Company, the Board of GeneralDirectors develops a plan and tasks for 2025 with the

following specific contents:
A. Economic indicators

Plan Increase/decrease
Or. INDICATOR 2025 rate compared to
previous year
I | Total revenue(Million Dong) 1.200.000 128%
1 Electrncnty Business ~ 1.164. 500 128%
- | An Duong Electric Enterprise 416.000 C118%
- Thg}{“}}{guyen Electric Enterprise 156.000 | 11 8% ._
- | Vinh Bao Electric Enterprise 127200 115%
- |HaLongBranch 60.000 | 131%
- | Eco Hai Duong Branch 45000 |  127%
- | Eco Hung Yen Branch 295.800 128%
- | Nghe An Branch 4.000
- | Phu Quoc Branch 36.000
Accepting new projects 24.500
2 | Water business 19.500 112%
3 | Other revenue 16.000 DL —
II | Output NN S —
1 | Electricity Output (KWh) ~450.500.000 121 %. e
- | An Duong Electric Enterprise 161.200. 000 111%
- | Thuy Nguyen Electric Enterprise 65.400. 000 111%
- | Vinh Bao Electric Enterprise 56.200. 0-00 1 10%
- | HaLong Branch 20.000.000 125%
" Eco Hai Duong Branch 15.500.000 120%
- |EcoHung YenBranch | 109.500.000 122%
= Nghe An Branch 1.500.000 -
- | Phu Quoc Branch 12.500.000
- | Accepting new projects 8.700.000
2 | Water Output (m3) ~ 1.127.000 111%
_ | Project areas of An Duong Power 913.000 109%
| Enterprise
_ | Project areas of Thuy Nguyen Power 0.000
| Enterprise s
- |HaLong Branch 194.000|  108%
IIl | Loss ratio
1| Power loss (%) 39% | 012%
- | An Duong Electric Enterprise 4,8% ~0,02%
- | Thuy Nguyen Electric Enterprise 4.8% 0,04%
- | Vinh Bao Electric Enterprise 5,0% -
- |Ha Long Branch - 5,6% -0,98%
- | Eco Hai Duong Branch 2,1% -0,07%
- | EcoHung Yen Branch I; 8% -0,01%
- | Nghe An Branch 3 0% _____
- | Phu Quoc Branch . 3,6%
= Acceptmg new prcgects 3,6% )
2 | Water loss(%) 4,6% 041%
IV | Profit before tax(Blllmn dong) 56,0 i 105%
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Payments to the StateBudget(Blllmn o e
Dividend Ratio:
A\ | = Cash > 20%
- Bonus Shares +25% |
Average salary (Million
L Dong/person/month) 15,0 108%

B — Measures to be taken
I. Organization:

- Recruit and train human resources to meet the needs of management, operation and
business in the units and receive new locations.

- Restructure and rearrange the management staff, appoint additional positions: 2 Deputy
General Directors, 1 Deputy Director of Hung Yen Branch and 1 Deputy Manager of
Business Department.

- Develop and adjust salaries and contract mechanisms for departments and employees
from January 2025, increasing by 8-10%
II. Management and operation

- Strengthen the management, inspection and supervision of the activities of units in the
field of electricity activities. Check the use of electricity and water by customers, apply the
correct price for customers using electricity and water for non-domestic purposes.

- Carry out regular inspection and maintenance of the power grid asset system to prevent
incidents and ensure safe operation.

- Repair and replace equipment of the power system and water supply system.

- Conduct periodic testing of substations and RMU cabinets in urban areas and branches:
Including 40 substations, of which 15 are in Hai Phong City and 25 are in Ecopark Hung
Yen Urban Area.

- Strengthen the application of technology to serve the management and customer care
work:

+ Carry out communication work combined with service notification content to connect
and support customers to use available utilities on the Company's customer care
applications.

+ Develop more online payment channels with collection units to provide suitable
solutions, creating favorable conditions for customers to pay electricity and water bills.
Organize periodic training on occupational safety and hygiene, deploy and closely monitor
units, ensuring absolute safety for people and property. Strengthen training on professional
skills, management skills and communication skills, customer carc for staff.

IIL. Investment, renovation and repair of power grid system:

1. Invest in additional substations in communes and wards:

Constructing 12 new substations, with a total additional invested capacity of 7,350 KVA,
specifically:

- An Duong Power Enterprise 07 stations.

- Thuy Nguyen Power Enterprise 02 stations.

- Vinh Bao Power Enterprise 03 stations.

2. Coordinate with District Electricity to upgrade low-capacity transformers to meet the
load demand of residential areas. Capacity increased by 4,510KVA.

- Substations are assets of the Company: 03 stations.
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- Substations are assets managed by the Electricity: 18 stations

3. Invest in repairing, renovating and supplementing low voltage power lines to load
substations and prevent overload. Total volume 22.5 KM.

- An Duong Power Enterprise: 10 KM.
- Thuy Nguyen Power Enterprise: 5,5 KM.
- Vinh Bao Power Enterprise: 7 KM.

4. Additional investment and replacement of electric pole system to ensure technical
standards and aesthetics: 550 poles.

- An Duong Power Enterprise: 150 poles.
- Thuy Nguyen Power Enterprise: 200 poles.
- Vinh Bao Power Enterprise: 200 poles.

5. Coordinate with the Project Management Board of districts to relocate the power grid
system to serve the site clearance for road construction in communes and wards.

- An Dong Ward, An Duong District.
Hoang Lam and Lap Le ward, Thuy Nguyen city.

- Communes: Thang Thuy, Vinh Hai, Vinh Hung, Tran Duong, Tam Cuong in Vinh Bao
district

6. Replace and inspect water meter system:

+) Electricity meter:

Replace quantity: 26.500 meters. Including:

- Remote electronic meters: 25.000 meters.

- Induction electric meters: 1.500 meters

Allocate units:

- An Duong Power Enterprise: 12.100 meters.

- Thuy Nguyen Power Enterprise: 5.500 meters.

- Vinh Bao Power Enterprise: 6.500 meters.

- Ha Long Branch: 400 meters.

- Hai Duong Branch: 750 meters.

- Hung Yen Branch: 650 meters.

- New projects: 600 meters.

+) Water meter:

Replace and inspect the water meter system in the areas managed by An Duong Power
Plant. Quantity: 800 meters.

7. Develop new customers:

+) Installation of electricity for customers at factories: 2.400 households.

- An Duong Power Enterprise: 1.500 households.

- Thuy Nguyen Power Enterprise: 600 households

- Vinh Bao Power Enterprise: 300 households.

+) Installation for water users at An Duong and Thuy Nguyen Enterprises: 250 households.

+) Receive new applications and complete procedures for supplying electricity to
customers at Urban Area Projects under the management of the Branches: 3.650 customers.
In which:

- Ha Long Branch: 150 customers.

- Ecopark Hai Duong Branch: 200 customers.

Trang 7




- Ecopark Hung Yen Branch: 1.500 customers.
- Nghe An Branch: 300 customers.

- New projects:1.500 customers.

8. Business market development:

Connect with project owners of urban areas, housing, tourism areas, and commercial
services to receive electricity and water systems to perform management and business
tasks.

IV. Other content:

- Develop a plan to implement the conversion of upstream electricity purchase prices with
An Duong and Thuy Nguyen Power due to the change in administrative structure from
district and commune levels to ward, district and city levels in An Duong district and Thuy
Nguyen city.

- Carry out tax settlement inspections in 2023 and 2024 with Hai Phong Tax Department.

Organize a Customer Conference Program to increase efficiency in the field of electricity
activities and electricity and water use; Organize tours, learning experiences, and vacations
for staff and employees in 2025

C. CAPITAL PLAN:
Estimated capital for production and business activities in 2025: 41 billion VND.
In which:

1. Construction of 12 additional substations in communes and wards: 7.5 billion
VND.

2. Capacity expansion of 21 substations: 4.5 billion VND.

3. Supplementing and upgrading low-voltage power lines and power pole systems in
communes: 4.5 billion VND.

4. Replacement of electricity and water meter systems: 18 billion VND.

5. Repair, replacement, and inspection of equipment: 2 billion VND.

6. Office repair, equipment procurement: 1.2 billion VND.

7. Cost of organizing conference programs in 2025: 3.3 billion VND

Above is the report on the results of production and business activities in 2024 and
the direction and tasks for 2025, the Board of General Directors respectfully presents to
the General Meeting. We look forward to receiving the consideration and approval of
our shareholders.

Sincerely thanks!

Hai Phong, March 15, 2025
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

- Above;
- Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Board of General Directors;
- Save: Secretary of the Board of Directors.
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
The Board of General Directors of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company (the
“Company™) presents this report together with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Management and the Board of General Directors of the Company who held office
during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

Mr. Do Huy Dat Chairman
Mr. Le Huu Canh Member
Mr. Nguyen Trung Kien Member
Mr. Ta Van Son Member
Ms. Lai Thi Vinh Member
Ms. Vu Thi Luong Dung Member

Board of General Directors

Mr. Le Huu Canh General Director
Mr. Nguyen Van Thao Deputy General Director
Legal representative

The legal representative of the Company during the year and to the the date of this report is Mr.. Do Huy Dat -
Chairman of the Board of Management.

Mr. Do Huy Dat has authorized Mr. Le Huu Canh - General Director to sign the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with Letter of Authorization No. 08/GUQ-DNC dated 7 April 2021.

BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors is responsible for preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position, its financial performance, and its cash flows of the Company for the year in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to
financial reporting. In preparing these financial statements, the Board of General Directors is required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e Pprepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

®» Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparing and
presenting the financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and that the financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal
regulations relating to financial reporting. The Board of General Directors is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other
irregularities.

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in
preparing these financial statements.



HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)
In the Board of General Directors’ opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal

regulations relating to financial reporting.

or-and. on behalf of the Board of General Directors,

Le Huu Canh
General Director
Hai Phong, 10 March 2025



VACO AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

v E E D 12A Floor, 319 Corporation Tower, No. 63 Le Van Luong Street
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@ Tel: (84-24) 3577 0781/ Fax: (84-24) 3577 0787
[ Website: www.vaco.com.vn
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No.: 0b/ /VACO/BCKIT.NV2
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Board of Management and Board of General Directors
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company (the “Company”) prepared on 14 March 2025 as set out from page 4 to page 37, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes to
the financial statements (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™).

Board of General Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 7
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to] =
financial reporting and for such internal control as the Board of General Directors determines is necessary to enable the'
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. &

)

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of General Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to

Nguyen Phuong Lan Vu Manh Hung

Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 0917-2023-156-1 No. 2737-2023-156-1

For and on behalf of

VACO AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED
Harnoi, 14 March 2025

3
Ho Chi Minh Office Dong Nai Office Binh Duong Office
11* Floor, HUD Building, No.159 Dien Bien Phu Street Na. 79 Ha Huy Giap Street, Quyet Thang Ward No. 12, Street 5, Group 19
Ward 15, Binh Thanh Dist., Ho Chi Minh City Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province Quarter 3, Chanh nghia Ward

Tel: (84-28) 3840 6618 - Fax: (84-28) 3840 6616 Tel: (84-251) 382 8560 - Fax: (84-251) 382 8560 Thu Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province



HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 01 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

A. CURRENT ASSETS

I. Cash

1. Cash

I1. Short-term financial investments

1. Trading securities

2. Provision for impairment of trading securities
3. Held-to-maturity investments

II1. Short-term receivables

1. Short-term trade receivables

2. Short-term advances to suppliers

3. Short-term loan receivables

4. Other short-term receivables

IV. Inventories

1. Inventories

2. Provision for devaluation of inventories
V. Other short-term assets

1. Short-term prepayments

2. Value added tax deductibles

3. Taxes and other receivables from the State budget

B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

I. Fixed assets
1. Tangible fixed assets
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation
2. Intangible assets
- Cost
- Accumulated amortisation
I1. Long-term assets in progress
1. Long-term construction in progress
III. Long-term financial investments
1. Investments in joint-ventures, associates
2. Provision for impairment of long-term financial
investments
IV. Other long-term assets
1. Long-term prepayments

TOTAL ASSETS (270 =100 +200)

Codes Notes

100
110 4
111
120
121
122
123
130
131 7
132 8
135
136 9
140 10
141
149
150
151 11

153 17

221 12

227 13

240 14

250 15

260
261 11

270

Closing balance

Unit: VND

Opening balance

(Restated)

113,460,963,189 98,913,461,985
20,631,732,678 16,262,893,402
20,631,732,678 16,262,893,402
8,845,622,953 16,013,542,328
9,886,685,075 15,483,542,328
(1,565,127,875) -
524,065,753 530,000,000
65,484,182,496 53,909,220,882
38,978,261,330 36,604,635,884
1,266,471,233 1,366,493,107

- 100,000,000
25,239,449,933 15,838,091,891
16,415,521,396 10,640,076,054
16,581,394,355 10,805,949,013
(165,872,959) (165,872,959)
2,083,903,666 2,087,729,319
1,979,663,268 1,946,476,702
23,578,547 141,252,617
80,661,851 -
89,279,966,536 74,869,684,909
59,744,826,839 54,747,607,928
54,483,895.133 50,354,306,565
134,731,835,425 122,444,784,963
(80,247,940,292) (72,090,478,398)
5,260,931,706 4,393,301,363
6,148,179,248 5,281,629,248
(887,247,542) (888,327,885)
382,687,445 889,450,913
382,687,445 889,450,913
3,592,670,397 3,659,275,976
4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
(407,329,603) (340,724,024)
25,559,781,855 15,573,350,092
25,559,781,855 15,573,350,092
202,740,929,725 173,783,146,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 01 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

/Yo

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2024
Codes Notes

C. LIABILITIES 300
I. Current liabilities 310
1. Short-term trade payables 311 16
2. Short-term advances from customers 312
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the State budget 313 17
4. Payables to employees 314
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 18
6. Other current payables 319 19
7. Short-term loans and obligations under finance leases 320 20
8. Bonus and welfare funds 322
II. Long-term liabilities 330
1. Deferred tax liabilities 341
D. EQUITY 400
I. Owner’s equity 410 21
1. Owner’s contributed capital 411

- Ordinary shares carrying voting rights 4lla
2. Share premium 412
3. Investment and development fund 418
4. Other reserves 420
5. Retained earnings 421

- Retained earnings accumulated to the prior 421a

year end

- Retained earnings of the current year 421b
TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400) 440

Unit: VND

Closing balance  Opening balance
(Restated)

69,478,793,392 60,338,233,409
68,789,408,743 60,179,697,308
32,452,539,773 30,807,382,831
473,797,398 899,218,950
3,129,243.900 4,254,804,580
906,818,300 810,272,131
11,334,582,676 10,537,239,334
4,403,248.,460 3,105,689,641
14,456,096,582 8,565,306,014
1,633,081,654 1,199,783,827
689,384,649 158,536,101
689,384,649 158,536,101
133,262,136,333 113,444,913,485
133,262,136,333 113,444,913,485
80,277,800,000 64,222,580,000
80,277,800,000 64,222,580,000
(50,000,000) (50,000,000)
557,368,590 557,368,590
713,858,604 713,858,604
51,763,109,139 48,001,106,291
17,741,254,467 17,120.472,848
34,021,854,672 30,880,633,443
202,740,929,725 173,783,146,894

Nguyen Thi Ly
Preparer
Hai Phong, 14 March 2025

Mai Thi Thanh Ha
Chief Accountant

Le Huu Canh

General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 02 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS

1. Gross revenue from goods sold and services rendered

2. Deductions

3. Net revenue from goods sold and services rendered

(10=01-02)
4. Cost of sales

5. Gross profit from goods sold and services rendered

(20=10-11)
6. Financial income
7. Financial expenses
- In which: Interest expense
8. General and administration expenses
9. Operating profit
{30=20+(21-22)-26}
10. Other income
11. Other expenses
12. Profit from other activities (40 = 31 - 32)
13. Accounting profit before tax (50 = 30 + 40)
14. Current corporate income tax expense
15. Deferred corporate tax expense
16. Net profit after corporate income tax
(60 =50 - 51-52)
17. Basic earnings per share

/M/%

Codes Notes
01
02
10 23
11 24
20
21 25
22 26
23
26 28
30
31
32
40
50
St 29
52 30
60
70 31

Unit: VND
Current year Prior year
(Restated)
937,408,787,887  802,482,861,535
937,408,787,887  802,482,861,535
860,603,511,162  734,609,525,271
76,805,276,725 67,873,336,264
1,656,053.081 195,660,787
2.144,598,839 (2.255,829,123)
312,865,385 751,292,121
23,225,477,877 20,314,992,366
53,091,253,090 50,009,833,808
473,901,526 402,008,216
371,023,298 2.336.227.915
102,878,228 (1,934,219,699)
53,194,131,318 48,075,614,109
10,522,739,007 10,523.277,474
530.848.548 158.536,101
42,140,543,763 37,393,800,534
6,084 5,227

Nguyen Thi Ly
Preparer
Hai Phong, 14 March 2025

Mai Thi Thanh Ha
Chief Accountant

Le Huu Canh

General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 03 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Indirect method)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS

L. Cash flows from operating activities

1. Profit before tax

2. Adjustments for:

- Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets and investment

- Provisions

- (Gain)/loss from investing activities

- Interest expense

3. Operating profit before movements in working capital

- Increase/(Decrease) in receivables

- Increase/(Decrease) in inventories

- Increase/(Decrease) in payables (excluding accrued loan interest
and corporate income tax payable)

- Increase/(Decrease) in prepaid expenses

- (Increase)/Decrease in trading securities

- Interest paid

- Corporate income tax paid

- Other cash outflows

Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities

IL. Cash flows from investing activities

1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and other long-term assets

2. Cash outflow for lending. buying debt instruments of other entities

3. Cash recovered from lending, selling debt instruments of other entities

4. Interest earned. dividends and profits received

Net cash generated by /(used in) investing activities

IIL Cash flows from financing activities

1. Proceeds from borrowings

2. Repayment of borrowings

3. Dividends and profits paid

Net cash generated by /(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash (50 =20 + 30 + 40)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (70 = 50 + 60 + 61)

/7 = i,

Codes

01

02
03
05
06
08
09
10
11

12

13

15
17
20

23
24
27
30

Unit: VND

Current year Prior year
53,194,131,318 48,075,614,109
8.415.006.551 7.173,958.457
1.631.733.454 (3.027.340,644)
(57.804,537) (195.660,787)
512.865.385 751,292,121
63,695,932,171 52,777,863,256
(11.533.652.670) (34.340,566.031)
(5.529.070,342) (798.314.743)

4,656.985,652

(10.019,618,329)
5,596.857.253
(614.359.280)

(11,479,694.501)

(4.228.858.088)
30,544,521,866

(14,489,072,363)
30,000,000
53.764.205

(14,405,308,158)

87,584,768,823
(81.693,978.255)
(17.661,165,000)
(11,770,374,432)
4,368,839,276
16,262,893,402

0,631,732,678

32,711,501.362

(9.455.248,199)
8.765.111.358
(765.544,944)

(7.798.808.249)

(2.735.853,839)

38,360,139,971

(11.942,321.450)
(530,000,000)
94,059,556
(12,378,261,894)

66.886.477.360
(70.171,171.346)
(16,055,732.375)
(19,340,426,361)
6,641,451,716
9,621,441,686

16,262,893,402

Mai Thi Thanh Ha
Chief Accountant

Nguyen Thi Ly
Preparer
Hai Phong, 14 March 2025

Le Huu Canh

General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY FORM B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

Le Chan District, Hai Phong City dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Ownership structure

Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company was converted to its current
ownership form under Decision No. 1390/QD-UB dated 1 July 2005 issued by the People’s Committee
of Hai Phong City. The Company operates under the first Business Registration Certificate No.
0203001815 dated 21 October 2005 issued by the Hai Phong Department of Planning and Investment,
the 17th amended certificate No. 0200155561 dated 7 January 2025 issued by the Hai Phong Department
of Planning and Investment.

According to the 17th amended Business Registration Certificate dated 7 January 2025, the Company’s -
charter capital is VND 80,277.800,000.

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 was 161 (as at 31 December 2023: 156).
Operating industry and principal activities

The Company’s operating industry is trade, services, and construction.

The Company’s principal activities during the year are as follows:

e Generation, transmission, and distribution of electricity. Details: Transmission and distribution of
electricity;

¢ Manufacture of other metal products not classified elsewhere. Details: Manufacturing pre-engineered
steel structures and non-standard structures;

Manufacture of electrical wires, cables, and other electronic components;

e Manufacture of all kinds of electrical wiring equipment;

Installation of industrial machinery and equipment. Details: Installation of machinery for civil and
industrial works;

e Construction of all types of houses;

Construction of railway and road works;

* Construction of public works. Details: Construction of telecommunications, irrigation, dykes, bridges

and culverts; Demolition;
Installation of electrical systems;
Installation of water supply, drainage, heating, and air conditioning systems;

o Completion of other construction works. Details: Construction of water supply and drainage systems,
water treatment system; Construction of power transmission lines, 220KV transformer stations,
wharves, ports, bridges, and culverts;

e Warehousing and storage of goods;

Real estate business, land use rights owned by the owner, user or lessee. Details: Real estate business;
Construction of other civil engineering works. Details: Construction of urban and industrial
infrastructure, wharves and ports;

e Water exploitation, treatment and supply. Details: Distribution of clean water.

Normal production and business cycle
The Company’s normal production and business cycle is carried out for a period of 12 months or less.

Characteristics of the business activities in the financial year which have impact on the financial
statements

No special business activity during the year has an effect on the Company’s financial statements.
Declaration on comparability of information on financial statements
Comparative figures are those on the audited financial statements for the year 2023. Some figures of the

prior year have been reclassified to conform to the comparison with the figures of the current year as
stated in Note 37 - Comparative figures of the Notes to the financial statements.




HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Company’s structure

As at 31 December 2024, the list of affiliated units and associates of the Company is as follows:

No.

Name

Address

Principal business
activities

I

Affiliated units

1

Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly
JSC - Ha Long branch

Hai Phong  Electricity
Water Machine Assembly
JSC - Ecopark Hai Duong
Branch

Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly
JSC - Ecopark Hung Yen
Branch

Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly
JSC - Phu Quoc branch

Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly
JSC - Nghe An Branch (i)

Associate

Kiosk C238, Bai Chay Ward,
Ha Long City, Quang Ninh
Province

3rd Floor, Minh Anh Plaza,
76-80 Tran Hung Dao, Tran
Hung Dao Ward, Hai Duong
City, Hai Duong Province

1st Floor, A3 Building, Van
Giang Commercial and
Tourism Urban Area, Xuan
Quan Commune, Van Giang
District, Hung Yen Province

8336, An Thoi Gateway Urban

Area, Quarter 6, An Thoi
Ward, Phu Quoc City, Kien
Giang Province

TG1-16/LK53-18, Eco Central

Park Urban Area, Hung Hoa
Commune, Vinh City, Nghe
An Province

Electricity transmission
and distribution
Clean water distribution

Electricity transmission
and distribution

Electricity transmission
and distribution

Electricity transmission
and distribution

Electricity transmission
and distribution

Ha Long Electricity Water
Joint Stock Company (ii)

(ii)

Kiosk C238, Sunworld Old
Quarter, Ha Long Road, Bai
Chay Ward, Ha Long City,
Quang Ninh Province

Electricity transmission
and distribution

Water exploitation,
treatment, and supply

Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company - Nghe An Branch was
established under Decision No. 15/QD-HDQT dated 8 September 2024, and was granted the first
Business Registration Certificate for the Branch on 25 September 2024 with Branch code No.

0200155561-005.

Details in Note 15.

FINANCIAL YEAR, APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARD AND REGIME

Financial year

The Company’s financial year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Applied accounting regime

The Company applied Vietnamese accounting standards, accounting regime for enterprises in accordance
with Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 and circulars guiding the implementation
of accounting standards of the Ministry of Finance in the preparation and presentation of financial
statements.
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HATI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY FORM B (09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

2.

FINANCIAL YEAR, APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARD AND REGIME (CONTINUED)
Declaration of compliance with accounting standard and accounting regime

The Board of General Directors ensures to comply with the requirements of Vietnamese accounting
standards, accounting regime for enterprises in accordance with Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22
December 2014 and circulars guiding the implementation of accounting standards of the Ministry of
Finance in preparation of financial statements.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in
countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared on a time basis (except for information relating to cash flows).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting requires the Board
of General Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial year. Although these accounting
estimates are based on the Board of General Directors’ best knowledge, actual results may differ from
those estimates.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting requires the Board
of General Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial year. Although these accounting
estimates are based on the Board of General Directors’ best knowledge, actual results may differ from
those estimates.

Evaluation and recognition at fair value

As stipulated in Article 28 - Evaluation and recognition at fair value. However, at the time of issuing this
report, there is no specific instruction for this matter; therefore, the Board of General Directors]has
considered and applied as follows:

a) Financial instruments are recognized and revaluated at fair value based on historical cost less
provisions (if any) in accordance with current regulations.

b)  For assets and liabilities (except items a as mentioned above), the Company does not have any basis
to determine the reliable value; therefore, the Company records at historical cost.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assets: At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are recognised at cost plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Financial assets of the
Company comprise cash, cash equivalents, trade receivables, loan receivables, other receivables, and
financial investments.

Financial liabilities: At the date of initial recognition financial liabilities are recognised at cost plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.Financial liabilities of
the Company comprise trade and other payables, accrued expenses, and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement after initial recognition

Currently, there are no requirements for the subsequent measurement of the financial instruments after
initial recognition.
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY FORM B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.

Financial investments

Trading Securities

Trading securities are those the Company holds for trading purpose. Trading securities are recognised
from the date the Company obtains the ownership of those securities and initially measured at the fair

value of payments made at the transaction date plus directly attributable transaction costs.

In subsequent periods, investments in trading securities are measured at cost less provision for
impairment of such investments.

Provision for impairment of trading securities is made in accordance with prevailing accounting
regulations.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments comprise investments that the Company has the positive intent or ability to
hold to maturity, including term deposits (commercial bills), bonds, preference shares which the issuer
shall redeem at a certain date in the future, loans held to maturity to earn periodic interest and other held-
to-maturity investments.

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at
acquisition price plus directly attributable transaction costs. Post-acquisition interest income from held-
to-maturity investments is recognised in the income statement on accrual basis. Pre-acquisition interest is
deducted from the cost of such investments at the acquisition date.

Held-to-maturity investments are measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts relating to held-to-maturity investments is made in accordance with
prevailing accounting regulations.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Interests in associates are initially recognised at cost. The Company’s share of the net profit of the
investee after acquisition is recognised in the income statement. Other distributions received other than
such profit share are deducted from the cost of the investments as recoverable amounts.

Provision for loss of investments in associates is made when the associates are incurred the loss as equal
as the difference between the actual contributed capital of parties in associates and the actual equity
multiplied by the percentage of capital contribution between controlling company and its parties.

The change of provision for loss of investments in associates need to be made at the balance sheet date
and are recorded in financial expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business cooperation contracts

Business cooperation contracts are agreements in which the Company and other parties conduct
economic activities under joint control. Joint control means that strategic decisions related to the
operational and financial policies of the joint venture require unanimous consent from all jointly
controlling parties.

Income from business cooperation contracts is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits
from these transactions will be received or transferred by the Company and that these benefits can be
reliably measured.

Receivables

Receivables represent the amounts recoverable from customers or other debtors and are stated at book
value less provision for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts is made based on an assessment of the recoverability of these receivables.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs
to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

The evaluation of necessary provision for inventory obsolescence follows current prevailing accounting
regulations which allow provisions to be made for obsolete, damaged, or sub-standard inventories and for
those which have costs higher than net realisable values as at the balance sheet date.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The costs of purchased tangible fixed assets comprise their purchase prices and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use.

The costs of self-constructed or manufactured assets are the actual construction or manufacturing cost
plus installation and test running costs

Years of depreciation

Buildings and structures 05-25
Machinery and equipment 03-12
Motor vehicles 06-10
Management equipment 03

Intangible fixed assets and amortization

Intangible fixed assets including land use rights and computer software are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization. In which: Land use rights are amortized using the straight-line method over
the land use period (not amortized if the land use rights are indefinite). Computer software is amortized
using the straight-line method over five years.
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HATI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY FORM B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for other
purposes, are carried at cost. Cost includes costs that are necessary to form the assets in accordance with
the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Prepayments

Prepayments are expenses which have already been paid but relate to results of operations of multiple
accounting periods. Prepayments include tools and supplies, insurance costs, repair costs, office
renovation costs at 34 Thien Loi, and other expenses. These expenditures have been capitalised as
prepayments, and are allocated to the income statement using the straight-line method with an allocation
period of no more than three years. For remote electronic meters, the Company allocates over a period of
6 years according to the inspection cycle of the remote meters.

Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized for future amounts payable related to goods and services
received. Accrued expenses are recognized based on reasonable estimates of the amount payable.

The classification of payables into trade payables, accrued expenses, and other payables are made on the
following principles:

e  Trade payables reflect payables arising from purchases of goods, services, assets and sellers are
independent units to the Company, including accounts payable upon importation through
consignee.

¢  Accrued expenses reflect amounts payable for goods or services received from the seller or
provided to the buyer but not be paid due to lack of invoices or incomplete accounting records
and documents, payments to employees for leave and prepaid production and business expenses.

e  Other payables reflect non-trade payables and does not relate to the purchase, sale or supply of
goods or services.

Equity

Owner’s capital contributions: Owner’s contributed capital is recognized based on the actual contributed
capital of the shareholders.

Share premium: Share premium is recognized based on the difference between the issue price and the
face value of the shares when they are issued for the first time, additional issuance, the difference
between the reissue price and the book value of treasury shares and equity component of convertible
bonds upon maturity. Direct expenses related to the issuance of additional shares and reissue of treasury
shares are recorded as a decrease in share premium.

Profit distribution

Profit after tax is distributed to shareholders after deducting funds in accordance with the Charter of
Company and regulations of the law which has been approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Profit distribution to shareholders is referenced to the non-monetary items included in retained earnings
that may affect cash flows and the ability to pay dividends/profits such as gains from revaluation of assets
contributed capital, interest from revaluation of monetary items, financial instruments and other non-
monetary items.

Dividends are recognized as liabilities when having the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all five (5) following conditions are satisfied:

a) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

b) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with; ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

¢) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;
and

e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of such
transactions can be measured reliably. Where a transaction involving the rendering of services is
attributable to several periods, revenue is recognised in each period by reference to the percentage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction can be
measured reliably when all four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

a) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

b) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

c) the percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably;
and

d) the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable
interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the year when incurred.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years (including loss carried forward, if any) and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is recognised on significant differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The determination of the tax currently payable is based on the current interpretation of tax regulations.
However, these regulations are subject to periodic variation and their ultimate determination depends on
the results of the tax authorities’ examinations.

Other taxes are paid in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties when one party has ability to control another or has significant
influence in making decision related to financial and operation policies. Parties are also considered as

related parties when they bare the same control and significant influence.

When considering the relationship of related parties, it is more focused on the nature of the relationship
than the legal form.

List of related parties with significant transactions and balances during the year:

Related parties Relationship
Ha Long Electricity Water Joint Stock Company Associate
Board of General Directors, Internal Audit committee, Chief Accountant, Key leaders

and Board of Management of the Company

CASH
Closing balance Opening balance
VND VND
Cash on hand 341,119,202 484,757,029
Demand deposits 20,290,613,476 15,778,136,373
Total 20,631,732.678 16,262.,893.402
TRADING SECURITIES
Closing balance Opening balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Vietnam Import-Export and 9,886.685.075 (1,565,127.875) 9.886.685,075 -
Construction Joint Stock
Corporation - Stock Code: VCG
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial - - 5,596,857,253 -
Bank for Industry and Trade - Stock
Code: CTG
Total 9.886,685,075 (1,565,127,875) 15,483,542,328 -

HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

Reflect the deposit at the Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam
with a 12-month term and an interest rate ranging from 4.8% per annum.
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7

SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Short-term trading receivables

The households in An Duong

Ecopark Hung Yen Electrical Branch

The households in Thuy Nguyen

The households in Vinh Bao

Viet Hung Urban Development and Investment JSC
Others

Total

SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

VTTC Construction Investment Joint Stock Company
Mat Troi Real Estate Management Company Limited
LS-VINA Cable & System Joint Stock Company
Others

Total

OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Closing balance Opening balance
VND VND
38,978,261,330 36,604,635,884
13,365,967,529 13,749,636,613
8,860,441,848 7,185,165,002
6,742,539,123 7,261,940,027
3,270,612,815 3,415,879,843
373,194,565 373,194,565
6,365,505,450 4,618.819.834
38,978.261,330 36.604.635.884
Closing balance Opening balance
VND VND
765,889,806 504,000,000
150,000,000 150,000,000
137,148,000 6,560,000
213,433,427 705,933,107

1.266,471,233 1,366,493.107

Closing balance Opening balance

Cost Provision Cost Provision

VND VND VND VND
Estimated electricity and water . )

: 13,902,999.994 - 9.945,619,537 -

revenue (i)
Advances 10,169,568,400 - 5.260,089,766 -
Collateral & Deposit 266,972,455 - 200,000,000 -
Others 899,909,084 - 432,382,588 -
Interest receivables 4,040,332 - 197,026,520 -
Others 895,868,752 - 235,356,068 -
Total 25,239.449.933 - 15,838,091.891 -
Note
(i) Other receivables corresponding to the estimated revenue from electricity and water charges

accrued from the final meter reading date to 31 December 2024.
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10. INVENTORIES

Closing balance Opening balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Raw materials 8,674.874.460 (165.872.959) 5.883,967.341 (165,872,959)
Tools and supplies 236,582,136 - 130.366.341 -
Work in process 7,669.937.759 - 4,791,615.331 -
Total 16,581,394,355 (165,872,959) 10,805,949.013 (165,872,959)

As at 31 December 2024, the value of unsold inventories is VND 165,872,959 (as at 31 December 2023:
VND 165,872,959); these are specific inventories of the electricity industry, the Company plans to
liquidate or reuse these inventories appropriately in the future.

Work in progress is construction works in progress, the closing balance mainly includes the Southeast
ring road project of Hai An District. On 12 February 2025, the Construction Investment Project
Management Unit - People’s Committee of Hai An District issued Notice No. 01/TB-QLDA on
continuing to implement the construction of the Southeast ring road of Hai An District, providing
guidance on preparing project adjustment documents and construction implementation plans.

11. PREPAYMENTS

Closing balance Opening balance
VND VND
Short-term 1,979,663,268 1,946,476,702
Tools and supplies for consumption 535,791,828 620,783,946
Insurance expense 36,197,254 40,266,072
Repair expense 573,127,511 47,561,965
Others 834,546,675 1,237,864,719
Long-term 25,559,781,855 15,573,350,092
Tools and supplies for consumption (i) 21,867,974,248 13,825,140,727
Expenses for 34 Thien Loi project (ii) 524,321,186 1,093,347,052
Repair expense for electrical grid network, and water 1.838.915,109 )
system
Others 1,328,571,312 654,862,313
Total 27,539,445,123 17.519.826,794
Note:
(i) Tools and supplies issued for consumption mainly represent the value of remote electronic
meters.
(ii) Reflect the renovation and repair costs of certain items at the Company’s Office at 34 Thien Loi.
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12. INCREASE, DECREASE IN TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Buildings and Machinery and Motor vehicles ~ Management and Total
structures equipment equipment
VND VND VND VND VND

HISTORICAL COST
Opening value 14,356,660,588 99,654,986,127 8,262,885,998 170,252,250 122,444,784,963
Acquisition - - 293,804,593 - 293,804,593
Construction 1,787,441,832 10,710,804,037 - - 12,498,245,869
Other decrease - (505,000,000) - - (505.,000,000)
Closing value 16,144,102,420 109,860,790,164 8,556,690,591 170,252,250 134,731,835,425
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening value 4,969,005,409 62,743,149,447 4,208,071,292 170,252,250 72,090,478,398
Charge for the year 1,030,495.952 6,566,779,029 818.811.913 - 8,416,086,894
Other decrease - (258.625,000) - - (258,625,000
Closing value 5,999,501,361 69,051,303,476 5,026,883,205 170,252,250 80,247,940,292
NET BOOK VALUE
Opening value 9.387,655,179 36,911.836.680 4.054.814.706 50,354.306,5635
Closing value 10,144,601,059 40,809.486.688 3.529.807,386 - 54.483.895.133

As stated in Note 20, the Company has pledged tangible fixed assets with the net book value of VND
4,860,790,906 as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: VND 4,929,820,082) as collateral for
bank loans.

The cost of the tangible fixed assets includes VND 42,971,792,845 as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31
December 2023: VND 41,890,567,936) which have been fully depreciated but are still in use.

13. INCREASE, DECREASE IN INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land use rights Software program Total
VND VND VND

HISTORICAL COST
Opening balance 4,086,629,248 1,195,000,000 5,281,629,248
Acquisition - 866,550,000 866,550,000
Closing balance 4,086,629,248 2,061,550,000 6,148,179,248
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Opening balance 340,000,002 548,327,883 888,327,885
Depreciation expenses - 338,919,659 338,919,659
Other decrease (340.000,002) - (340,000,002)
Closing balance - 887,247,542 887,247,542
Carrying value
Opening balance 3,746,629,246 646,672,117 4,393,301,363

Closing balance

4,086,629,248 1,174,302,458

5,260,931,706

As stated in Note 20, the Company has pledged intangible fixed assets with the net book value of VND
680,000,000 as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: VND 340,000,002) as collateral for bank

loans.
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These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

14. LONG-TERM WORK IN PROGRESS

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND

Office project construction - Phu Quoc Branch 203,374,878 -
Electrical project in Vinh Bao 137.518.000 137,518.000
Electrical project in An Dong 5,140,000 24.464.697
Electrical project in three communes of An Duong 10,185,185 19.989.461
Electrical project in three communes of Thuy Nguyen 26,469,382 707.478,755
Total 382,687,445 889.450.913
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,

Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

16. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

ClosirE balance

Opening balance

Cost Amount able to be Cost  Amount able to
paid off be paid off
VND VND VND VND
Branch of Hai Phong Power 4,284.795,060 4,284,795,060 7.386,021,307 7,386.021,307
Company Limited - An Duong
Power
Hung Yen Power Company - 16.629.270,191 16.629.270,191 11.229.873,038  11,229.873,038
Northern Power Corporation
Branch of Hai Phong Power 3,318,420,350 3,318.420,350 2.559.578.209  2,559,578.209
Company Limited - Thuy Nguyen
Power
Branch of Hai Phong Power 2,475,209.971 2,475,209,971 3,113,050,664 3.113.050,664
Company Limited - Vinh Bao
Power
O e compatics an 3.610.382,975 3610382975 3612294269  3,612.294.269
branches
Others 2,134,461.226 2.134,461,226 2,906,565,344 2,906,565,344
Total 32,452,539,773 32,452.539,773 __ 30,807,382.831  30,807.382,831

17. TAXES AND AMOUNTS RECEIVABLES FROM/PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Opening balance  Payable/Receivable Paid/Received  Closing balance
(Restated) during the year  during the year
VND VND VND VND
Payables

Value-added tax 256,896,402 6.534,518,522 6,713.361,765 78.053.159
Corporate income tax 3.886,314,118 10,526.345,571 11,479,694,501 2.932,965,188
Personal income tax 111,594,060 2,682,390.661 2.675,759,168 118,225,553
Land rent payable - 490,271,250 490,271,250 -
Others - 37,011,210 37.011,210 -
Total 4.254,804,580 20,270,537,214 21,396,097,894 3.129.243,900

Receivables
Value-added tax - - 80,661,851 80.661,851
Total - - 80,661,851 80,661,851

18. SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND
Accrual for 13th-month salary, remuneration of BOM and 2,936,109,854 2,838,534,317

Internal Audit Committee

Accrual for electricity and upstream water expenses 6,584,452.498 7,106,345,280
Others 1,814,020,324 592,359,737
Total 11,334,582,676 10,537,239.334
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY FORM B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

19.

OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES
Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
Contract guarantee deposit for electricity and water supply 1.887.698,148 1,887,698,148
works, and equipment for the Southeast Ring Road project,
Hai An District
Paybles to Mr. Tran Ngoc Hai regarding payment for 1,080,210,074 -
construction works
Interest expense 7.440,291 108,934,186
Others 1,427,899,947 1,109,057,307
Total 4,403,248.460 3.105.689.641
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY FORM B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

21. OWNERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)

a) Movements in owners’ equity (Continued)

Note (Continued)

- Profit distribution to partners in joint ventures and business cooperation agreements, including:

Company Amount (VND)
Ecopark Corporation Joint Stock Company 2,610,851,586
VP Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company 167,558,820
Hai Phong Hydraulic Construction Joint Stock Company 65,333,590
Total 2,843,743,996

Additionally, during the year, the Company distributed profits to Investment and Construction
Trading Joint Stock Company in the amount of VND 90.909,091. This amount is fixed per period
and does not depend on the Company’s business performance.

- Advance payment of the first dividend installment for 2024 in cash at a rate of 10% of charter
capital according to Resolution No. 15/NQ-HDQT dated 6 September 2024 with the total value of
VND 8,027,780,000.

In addition, the Company announced the second advance payment of 2024 dividend with the
payment rate of 15% per share, the ex-dividend date is on 7 March 2025.

(ii) According to the Company’s charter capital increase Resolution No. 12/NQ-HDQT dated 12 June
2024 regarding the issuance of an additional 1,605,564 shares as dividends for existing shareholders,
the par value per share is VND 10,000. Hanoi Stock Exchange decided to approve the additional
listing of 1,605,522 common shares under Decision No. 914/QD-SGDHN dated 21 August 2024
with the total issued value of VND 16,055,220,000.

During the year, the total amount of dividends actually paid to shareholders was VND 17,661,165,000.

b) Detailed in owner’s contributed capital .
Closing balance _ Opening balance

VND VND
Owner’s contributed capital 80,277,800,000 64,222,580,000
Total 80,277.800,000 64,222,580.000

¢) Capital transactions with owners and distributions of dividends, profit sharing

Curent year Prior year
VND VND

Owner’s investment capital
- Contributed capital at the beginning of the year 64,222,580,000 64,222,580,000
- Contributed capital increasing for the year 16,035,220,000 -
- Contributed capital at the end of the year 80,277,800,000 64,222 580,000
Dividends, profit received 33,716,385,000 16,055,732,375

d) Shares

Closing balance _ Opening balance
Shares Shares
The number of registered shares issued - -
The number of shares sold to the public 8,027,780 6,422,258
- Ordinary shares 8,027,780 6,422,258
Number of shares acquired (treasury shares) - -
- Preference shares (classified as owner's equity) - -
The number of shares in circulation 8,027,780 6,422,258
Par value of shares in circulation (VND) 10,000 10,000
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,
Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B (09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

22 OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Curent year Prior year
VND VND
Bad debts written-off
Tam Da Commune Management Board - Tam Da 306,598,000 306,598.000
Commune Water Pipeline Project (Hai)
Hai-Tu (Lending interest revenue from Viet Tiep 2 143,538,776 143,538,776

Hospital Project)

Total

450,136,776

450,136,776

23. REVENUE FROM GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED
Current year Prior year
VND VND
Revenue from goods sold and services rendered 937,408,787,887 802,482,861,535
Revenue from electric sales 912,123,545,184 776,670,092,834
Revenue from water sales 17,425,584,381 17,502,684,500
Others 7,859,658,322 8,310,084,201
Net revenue from goods sold and services rendered 937,408.787.887 802.482.861.535
24, COST OF SALES AND SERVICES RENDERED
Current year Prior year
VND VND
Cost of electric sales 841,300,577,838 714,715,092,771
Cost of water sales 16,650,903,527 16,573,605,332
Cost of other services 2,652,029,797 3,320,827.168
Total 860.603,511,162 734.,609,525,271
25. FINANCIAL INCOME
Current year Prior year
VND VND
Income from securities investment activities 1,598,248,544 -
Income from lending 57,804,537 195,660,787
Total 1,656,053,081 195,660,787
26. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Current year Prior year
VND VND
Interest expenses 512,865,385 751,292,121
Provision/Reversal of provision 1,631,733,454 (3,007,121,244)
Total 2,144,598,839 (2,255,829.123)
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HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,

Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements
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28.

29.

PRODUCTION COST BY NATURE

Current year Prior year

VND VND

Material, tools and supplies 16,501,125,890 16,601,637,172

Labor 32,741,152,338 31,062,022,726

Depreciation and amortisastion 8.415.006,551 7.173,958,457

Out-sourced services 27.977,055,384 16,222,241,729

Other monetary expenses 10,457,150,218 11,252,082,120

Total 96.091,490& 82.311,942.204
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Current year Prior year

VND VND

Employees 12,878,228,341 9,226,760,825

Depreciation and amortisastion 1,484,262,176 831,794,100

Taxes, fees, and charges 633,893,571 562,128,246

Qut-sourced services 795,460,531 4,040,387,377

Others 7,433,633,258 5,653,921,818

Total 23.225.477.877 20,314,992,366

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Profit before tax

Adjustments for taxable income

Adjustment increase for taxable income

- Remuneration of non-executive BOM members
- Non-deductible expenses

Adjustment decrease for taxable income
Difference in prepaid expense allocation

Taxable income
Corporate income tax rate

Current year Prior year
VND VND
53,194,131,318 48,075,614,109
(580,436,281) 4,110,966,267
2,073,806,459 4,903,646,770
1,061,390,499 812,000,000
1,012,415,960 4,091,646,770
2,654,242,740 792,680,503
2,654,242,740 792,680,503
52,613,695,037 52,186,580,376
20% 20%

Current corporate income tax expense
Deferred tax expense

10.522,739,007

10,437.316,075

85,961,399

Corporate income tax payable during the year

10.522,739,007 10,523,277.474

The Company is provisionally determining corporate income tax expenses based on the difference
between taxable income and accounting income with the amount of VND 580,436,281. The ultimate
determination depends on the results of the tax authorities” examinations.
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30. DEFERRED CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current yvear Prior year

VND VND

Difference in prepaid expense allocation 2,654,242.740 792,680,505
Tax rate 20% 20%
Deferred tax expense 530,848,548 158,536,101

31. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share allocated to shareholders holding the Company’s common
shares is based on the following data:

Current year Prior year

(Restated)

VND VND

Profit after tax 42.140,543,763 37.393,800,534

Adjustments to increase or decrease accounting profit to 90,909,091 4,571,246,823
determine profit attributable to common shareholders

- Bonus and welfare fund (i) - 1,727,502,827

- Profit allocation for joint ventures (i) 90,909,091 2.843,743,996

Profit to calculate basic earnings per share 42.231,452,854 41,965,047,357

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to 6,941,303 8,027,780

calculate basic earnings per share (ii)
Basis earning per share 6,084 5,227
Face value per share 10,000 10,000

The Company has not yet determined a specific plan for profit distribution in 2024, the allocation to
funds will be carried out in accordance with Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025.

Basic earnings per share for the prior year have been restated for the following reasons:

(i) The Company sets bonus and welfare fund and joint venture profit fund in accordance with
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders No. 02-2024/NQ-DHDCD dated 6 April
2024:

(ii) The Company issues 1,605,522 shares to pay dividends to the Company’s existing shareholders
in accordance with Resolution No. 12/NQ-HDQT dated 12 June 2024 on increasing the
Company’s charter capital.

Basic earnings per share presented in the 2023 report is VND 5,808/share.
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash) and shareholders’
equity (comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Company as at the balance sheet date was as follows:

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND
Borrowings 14,456,096,582 8,565,306,014
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (20,631,732,678) (16,262,893,402)
Net debt (6,175,636,096) (7,697,587,388)
Equity 133,262,136,333 113,444,913,485
Net debt to equity ratio 0,0% 0,0%

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition,
the bases of measurement, and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of
financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in Note 3.

Categories of financial instruments
Carrying value

Current year Prior year
VND VND

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20,631,732,678 16,262,893,402
Loan receivables - 100,000,000

Trade and other receivables

64,217,711,263

52,442,727,775

Held-to-maturity securities 524,065,753 530,000,000
Trading securities 8,321,557,200 15,483,542,328
Long-term financial investments 3,592,670,397 3,659,275.976
Total 97,287,737,291 88.478,439.481
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 36,855,788,233 33,913,072,472
Accrued expenses 11,334,582,676 10,537,239,334
Loans and obligations under finance leases 14,456,096,582 8,565,306,014
Total 62.646,467.,491 53,015.617.820

The Company has not assessed fair value of its financial assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date
since there is no comprehensive guidance under Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry
of Finance on 6 November 2009 (“Circular 210™) and other relevant prevailing regulations to determine
fair value of these financial assets and liabilities. While Circular 210 refers to the application of
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) on presentation and disclosures of financial
instruments, it did not adopt the equivalent guidance for the recognition and measurement of financial
instruments, including application of fair value, in accordance with IFRS.
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management objectives

The Company has set up risk management system to identify and assess the risks exposed by the
Company and designed control policies and procedures to manage those risks at an acceptable level. Risk
management system is reviewed on a regular basis to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s operations.

Financial risks include market risk (including price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and prices. The Company does not hedge these risk exposures due to the
lack of active market for the trading activities of financial instruments.

Commodity price risk management

The Company purchases materials, commodities from local and foreign suppliers for business purpose.
Therefore, the Company is exposed to the risk of changes in selling prices of materials, commodities.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. The Company has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an on-going basis. The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any
counterparty because receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries
and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk management

The purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure the availability of funds to meet present and future
financial obligations. Liquidity is also managed by ensuring that the excess of maturing liabilities over
maturing assets in any period is kept to manageable levels relative to the amount of funds that the
Company believes can generate within that period. The Company policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that the Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
borrowings and adequate committed funding from its shareholders to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
assets and financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The inclusion of information
on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

31

WA 5/




HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward,

Le Chan District, Hai Phong City

FORM B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

Closing balance

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trading securities
Held-to-matury investments
Long-term financial investments
Total

Closing balance
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses

Loans and obligations under finance leases

Total
Net liquidity gap

Opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Loan receivables

Trading securities
Held-to-matury investments
Short-term financial investments
Total

Opening balance
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses

Loans and obligations under finance leases

Total
Net liquidity gap

Less than 1 year owm 1 you More than 5 years Total
to 5 years
VND VND VND VND
20,631,732,678 - - 20,631,732,678
64,217,711,263 - 64.217,711,263
8,321,557.200 - - 8.321,557.200
524,065,753 - - 524,065,753
- - 3.592.670.397 3,592,670,397
93,695,066,894 - 3,592,670,397 97,287,737,291
36,855,788,233 - 36,855,788,233
11.334.582.676 11,334.582.,676
14,456,096,582 - 14.456,096.582
62,646,467,491 - 62,646,467,491
31,048,599.403 3,592,670,397 34,641,269,800
Less than 1 year Hrgma 1 pea More than 5 years Total
y to 5 years y
VND VND VND VND
16,262,893 402 - 16.262.893,402
52,442,727,775 - - 52,442,721.775
100,000,000 - - 100,000,000
15.483,542,328 - - 15,483,542,328
530,000,000 - - 530,000,000
- - 3,659.275.976 3,639.275,976
84,819,163,505 - 3,659,275,976 88,478,439,481
33.913,072.472 - - 33913,072.472
10,537,239,334 - - 10.537.239.334
8,565,306,014 - - 8,565,306.014
53,015,617,820 - - 53,015,617,820
31.803.545.685 - 3.659.275.976 35.462.821.661

The Board of General Directors assessed the liquidity risk at low level. The management believes that
the Company will be able to generate sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as and when

they fall due.
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33. OTHER INFORMATION

During the year, the Company engaged in the following joint venture and business cooperation contracts:

Joint venture contract on electricity management and business at Cuu Vien Urban Area, Kien An
District, Hai Phong City (Contract No. 10/2008/DN-XDDT dated 8 March 2008) with VP Trading
and Investment Joint Stock Company to jointly exploit and operate the electricity business at Cuu
Vien Urban Area, Kien An District, Hai Phong City. The exploitable asset includes the power line
system and transformer station, which have been completed at the site, with VP Trading and
Investment Joint Stock Company as the investor. The cooperation period begins upon project
completion, handover, and operational commencement. The minimum required capital is VND
200,000,000, and profit after tax will be distributed between the parties based on their contributions.
An Electricity Management Board has been established with financial reporting consolidated into the
Company’s accounts.

Joint venture contract on electricity management and business with Hai Phong Hydraulic
Construction Joint Stock Company (Contract No. 1208/HDLD dated 12 August 2021) at the project
“Investment in Residential Development on Extended Dike and Embankment Land for Capital
Generation in the Pilot Investment Project for Dike and Riverbank Reinforcement on the Right Bank
of Lach Tray River” (from Km 34+600 to Km 35+950). The exploitable asset includes the low-
voltage power system and electrical cabinets at Anh Dung Ward, Duong Kinh District, Hai Phong
City, with Hai Phong Hydraulic Construction Joint Stock Company as the investor. The cooperation
period is aligned with the validity of the electricity operation license issued by Hai Phong
Department of Industry and Trade, replacing Electricity Operation License No. 151 dated 14
September 2011 of the Electricity Regulatory Authority. Profit after tax will be distributed between
the parties based on their contributions. An Electricity Management Board, directly operated by the
Company, has been established with financial reporting consolidated into the Company’s accounts.

Business cooperation contract No. 01/2020/HDHTKD/HLC-HP dated 30 March 2019 with Ha Long
Sun Co., Ltd at the “Sun Premier Village Ha Long Bay Project” and “Sun Plaza Grand World
Project”. According to the contract, Ha Long Sun Co., Ltd operates by using its assets invested in the
project, including electrical system (12 transformer stations with a total capacity of 20,110 KVA,
22KV medium-voltage grid, low-voltage grid, and distribution electrical cabinets); clean water
supply system. Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company is responsible
for managing and operating the cooperative assets and other related activities. The two parties will
divide the business results after tax based on the agreed ratio.

Business cooperation contract No. 0819/HDHTKD dated 16 August 2019 with Investment and
Commercial Construction Joint Stock Company for the electricity sales in Phase 1 (7.3 hectares)
belonging to phase 1 of the Urban Area project connecting Lach Tray road with Ho Sen - Cau Rao 2
road in Dong Hai Ward and Du Hang Kien Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City. The contract
remains valid from August 2019 until Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company no longer holds an electricity operation license issued by the competent authority. The
Company must distribute profits to the partner as per the agreement.

Business cooperation contract No. 1001/HDHTKD/ECOPARKHD-HP dated 10 January 2020 with
Ecopark Hai Duong Investment Joint Stock Company at the Eco-rivers Urban Area Project along the
Thai Binh River. According to the contract, Ecopark Hai Duong Investment Joint Stock Company
operates by using its assets invested in the project, including: electrical system (21 transformer
stations with a total capacity of 35,000 KVA, 22KV medium-voltage grid, low-voltage grid,
distribution electrical cabinets, and electricity meters); lighting system; the Hai Phong Electrical and
Water Installation Joint Stock Company is responsible for managing and operating the cooperative
assets and other related activities. The two parties will divide the business results after tax based on
the agreed ratio. If losses occur during business operations, Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company commits to covering the deficit and is entitled to carry forward
losses to subsequent years.
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33. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

-  Business cooperation contract with Ecopark Corporation Joint Stock Company under the Contract
No. 201/HDHTKD/ECOPARK-DNC dated 28 October 2020 at Van Giang Commercial and
Tourism Urban Area (Ecopark), Van Giang District, Hung Yen Province. According to the contract,
Ecopark Corporation Joint Stock Company operates by using its assets invested in the project
including the transformer station system, 22KV medium-voltage grid, low-voltage electrical system,
distribution electrical cabinets, and electricity meters. Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company is responsible for managing and operating the cooperative assets
and other related activities. The two parties will divide the business results after tax based on the
agreed ratio. If losses occur during business operations, Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company commits to covering the deficit and is entitled to carry forward
losses to subsequent years.

- Business cooperation contract with Viet Trung Build and Aggregate Trading Joint Stock Company
(Party A) under the Contract No. 01/2021/HDHT dated 15 March 2021 regarding cooperation in
managing, operating, and selling electricity for technical infrastructure construction project of North
Cam River Resettlement Area. The cooperation period is long-term and divided into phases. Party A
authorizes the Company to carry out procedures for obtaining an electricity operation license within
the North Cam River Resettlement Area and to account for the revenue and expenses of the
electricity business. Profit/loss from the electricity business at the project will be divided among
partners according to the agreement.

- Business cooperation contract No. 161/2023/HDHTKD/PQC-HP dated 15 November 2023 with Phu
Quoc Sun Co., Ltd at “Gateway Urban Area Project”, “Hon Thom - Phu Quoc Cable Car and
Marine Entertainment Complex Project”, “Bai Khem - Phu Quoc High-end Eco-tourism and Resort
Project” and “Premier Village Phu Quoc Resort - High-end Eco-tourism and Resort Project”.
According to the contract, Phu Quoc Sun Co., Ltd operates by using its assets invested in the project
including the electrical system (complete transformer station system, 22KV medium voltage grid
system, low voltage grid system and distribution cabinet). Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company is responsible for managing and operating the cooperative assets
and other related activities. The two parties will divide the business results after tax based on the
agreed ratio.

- Business cooperation agreement No. 152/2024/HDHTKD/VIETLAO-DNC dated 4 September 2024
with Viet Lao Economic Coorperation Corporation (Party A) for cooperation in electricity business
operations using the electrical system invested by Party A at the urban and social housing project
and the urban and social housing expansion project in Hung Hoa Commune, Vinh City, Nghe An
Province. According to the contract, Viet Lao Economic Coorperation Corporation operates by
using its assets invested in the project including complete transformer station system; 22KV medium
voltage grid system, low voltage grid system, distribution cabinets, and electricity meters. Hai
Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company is responsible for managing and
operating the cooperative assets and other related activities. The two parties will divide the business
results after tax based on the agreed ratio.

34. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the balances with related parties as stated in Note 20, during the year, the Company had the
following major transactions with related parties:

Current year Prior year
VND VND

Ha Long Electricity Water Joint Stock Company
Interest expense 60,796,666 42,736,111
Interest paid 60,796,666 42,736,111
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34. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration paid to the Board of General Directors, Internal Audit Committee, Chief Accountant,
and Board of Management during the year was as follows:

35.

Current year Prior year

VND VND

Salaries and bonuses 6,555,068,094 6,357,791,030
Mr. Do Huy Dat 946,840,000 905,724,500
Mr. Le Huu Canh 1,585,229.077 1,627,553,200
Mr. Neguyen Trung Kien 256,500,000 236,500,000
Ms. Vu Thi Luong Dung 842,733,969 813,885,400
Mr. Ta Van Son 269,500,000 248,500,000
Mr. Nguyen Van Thao 924,217,385 864,546,307
Ms. Lai Thi Vinh 213,000,000 196,000,000
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Ha 605,123,012 602,583,215
Ms. Duong Thi Thuy Linh 137,500,000 131,000,000
Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha 774,424,651 731,498,408
Current year Prior year

VND VND

Dividends 12,582,245.500 11,075,259,500
Mr. Do Huy Dat 4,431,599,000 3,987,040,000
Mr. Le Huu Canh 2,191,317,500 1,992,107,500

Mr. Nguyen Trung Kien

4,785,525,000

3,992,295,000

Ms. Vu Thi Luong Dung 586,685,000 533,350,000
Mr. Ta Van Son 81,526,000 74,115,000
Mr. Nguyen Van Thao 214,940,000 195,400,000
Ms. Lai Thi Vinh 134,398,000 122,180,000
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Ha 98,985,000 85,022,000
Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha 57,270,000 93,750,000

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s business activities take place only in the northern region, so it does not prepare segment

reports by geographical area.

Segment information is presented based on the Company’s business sectors, including electricity supply,

water supply, and construction.

Segment results include directly allocated items as well as those distributed to multiple segments based on
a reasonable allocation method. Items not allocated include assets and liabilities, financial income and
expenses, selling expenses, general and administration expenses, other income, and corporate income tax.
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35.

36.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Below is the analysis of revenue, cost of sales, and service rendered of the Company by business

segments:

Current year
Net revenue from goods
sold and services rendered

Total revenue from
goods sold and services
rendered

Cost of sales

Business results

Prior year
Net revenue from goods
sold and services rendered

Total revenue from
goods sold and services
rendered

Cost of sales

Business results

Electricity =~ Water business Others Total
business sector sector
VND VND VND VND
912,123,545,184 17,425,584,381 7.859.658,322 937.408,787,887
912,123,545,184 17,425,584,381 7,859,658,322 937,408,787,887
841,300,577,838 16,650,903,527 2,652,029,797 860,603,511,162
70,822,967,346 774,680,854 5,207,628,525 76,805,276,725
Electricity = Water business Others Total
business sector sector
VND VND VND VND
776,670,092,834 17,502,684,500 8,310,084,201 802,482,861,535
776,670,092,834 17.502,684,500 8,310,084,201 802,482.861,535
714,715,092,771 16,573,605,332 3,320,827.168 734,609,525,271
61,955,000,063 929,079,168 4,989,257,033 67.873.336,264

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash outflows for purchases of fixed assets and construction in progress during the year include an
amount of VND 321,348,666, representing the advance payment to contractors under the contracts for
purchase and sales of fixed assets and construction services. Consequently, changes in accounts
receivable have been adjusted by the same amount.
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3. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Comparative figures are those on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Certain figures from the previous reporting period have been reclassified to conform to the comparison
with the figures of the current period, specifically as follows:

Items Reported amount as Restatement Amount after Note
at 31/12/2023 restatement as at
01/01/2024
VND VND VND ”
Balance sheet T
Value added tax deductibles 36,567,506 104,685,111 141,252,617 (i) +
Taxes and other receivables from the 12,415,416 (12,415,416) - (i) x
State budget
Taxes and amounts payable to the State 4,162,534.885 92,269,695 4,254,804,580 (i)
budget
Note:
(i) The Company has restated value added tax amounts based on the adjusted figures reported in the

supplementary tax declarations.

~ Ll /

Nguyen Thi Ly Mai Thi Thanh Ha Le Huu Canh
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director
Hai Phong, 14 March 2025
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HAI PHONG SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
ELECTRICITY WATER Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Hai Phong, March 15, 2025.
REPORT

Respectfully submit to: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

1. Audit Committee Activities

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020, the Law on Securities and
Decrees and Circulars guiding the Audit Committee and its functions and duties
are stipulated in the Law on Enterprises 2020 and Decree 155/2020/ND-CP and
the Company Charter.

- The Audit Committee operates according to the Audit Committee's
Operating Regulations under Decision No. 17/QDHDQT dated May 10, 2021.

- Mr. Ta Van Son, independent member of the Board of Directors, is
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

- Internal Audit Board includes: Mr. Nguyen Trung Kien, Member of
Board of Directors (Head of Committee); Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Ha and Ms.
Duong Thuy Linh

1.1. Audit Committee Meetings

The Audit Committee has held regular meetings in accordance with the
Audit Committee's Operating Regulations..

1.2. Conclusions and recommendations of the Audit Committee:

- Check, review and give comments on the Company's Rules, Provisions
and Regulations to ensure compliance with legal regulations, requirements of
regulatory agencies and other internal regulations of the Company.;

- Direct the Internal Audit Board to implement the internal audit plan for

2024 Investment activities, construction of power lines and transformer stations
in 2023 of the Company; Production and business activities of Ecopark Hung

Yen Branch.
% Internal audit of investment activities, construction of power lines and




transformer stations in 2023. The Internal Audit Board pointed out a number of
shortcomings and made recommendations to the Board of Directors: Develop
forms, processes and regulations on management and archiving of records;
Speed up the completion of design documents, construction drawings and
project estimates after having site plan and connection location documents;
Enhance responsibility and perform well the supervision tasks of the investor;
Review the time of supply and quality of materials and equipment for
construction works to ensure technical requirements; Speed up the construction
progress of assigned works, ensuring compliance with technical and safety
requirements according to regulations; Strictly implement regulations on
construction quality management, regulations on financial management and
project settlement; Urge the project settlement to ensure compliance with
procedures and time according to regulations.

* Internal audit of production and business activities from January 2023 to
October 31, 2024 of Ecopark Hung Yen Branch. The Internal Audit Board
pointed out a number of shortcomings and made recommendations to the Board
of Directors: Strengthen management of the Branch; The functional departments
direct and guide the Branch to properly implement the Company's regulations.

- Coordinate with functional departments to urge the correction of
financial violations at Thuy Nguyen Power Plant and violations in electricity
business management at Ha Long Branch.

- Through the audit, there was a written recommendation to the Board of
Directors to direct the Board of General Directors to take measures to overcome
loopholes and shortcomings.

2. Financial statements, operation situation and finance of the
Company;

- Financial statements are prepared and published in accordance with
accounting standards and current legal regulations. Financial statements are
prepared to reasonably and honestly reflect the financial situation of the
Company.

_ Resolutions and Decisions are issued validly, within authority and in
compliance with information disclosure regime for listed companies.

- The selected Auditing Company ensures reliability, honesty, compliance
with professional regulations, and objectivity when giving audit opinions.

- In 2024, The company achieved sales and service revenue of
937,408,787,887 VND, a growth rate of 117%. Pre-tax profit reached
53,194,131,318 VND, a growth rate of 111% compared to 2023.




- The Company's financial situation in 2024 is maintained healthy,
indicators of capital structure, operating capacity, and profitability remain stable
and increase compared to 2023.

3. Transactions between the Company, other companies in which the
Company controls 50% or more of the charter capital with members of the
Board of Directors, General Director, other executives of the Company and
related persons of that entity

The company has complied with the law, transactions are announced in
accordance with the regulations.

4. Results of supervision of the Board of Directors, General Director
and other executives of the Company

4.1. For the Board of General Directors

- The Board of General Directors has seriously implemented the
Resolutions of the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders and performed its
functions and duties in accordance with the provisions of law and the Company's
Charter.

- The Board of General Directors has implemented the contents of the
Resolutions of the Board of Directors. Despite the difficult business situation,
the company's business results have met the set plan, and some key targets have
exceeded the set plan. The company still ensures and maintains stable and
profitable business operations.

4.2. For the Board of Directors:

- The work of the Board of Directors in 2024 focused on the Resolution of
the General Meeting of Shareholders and complied with the Company Charter
and the Company Governance Regulations.

- The Board of Directors performs well the function of orienting the
development of the Company, through planning, controlling and adjusting
strategic decisions. The decisions of the Board of Directors at meetings are in
accordance with the provisions of law, the Company's Charter, Internal
Management Regulations, Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders
and are in accordance with the strategy approved at the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

- The Board of Directors meetings were convened and conducted in
accordance with regulations. The contents of the Board of Directors meetings
were reported, discussed, and fully evaluated in the spirit of openness, fairness,
and transparency to provide the best direction and solutions for the Company.

5. The Company's internal control and risk management system




- The Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors have
regularly monitored developments, forecasted and proposed appropriate
solutions to limit economic risks, legal risks, industry-specific risks and other
risks.

- The Board of General Directors has reviewed, supplemented and issued
documents and regulations related to operations, improving the effectiveness of
the internal control system. In September 2024, the General Director signed and
issued the supplement "Investment process for construction of medium voltage
lines and transformer stations".

- Identify changes in legal regulations related to the Board of Directors,
Audit Committee, Internal Audit Board; advise the Board of Directors on how to
organize in accordance with legal regulations and the needs of the Company.

6. Results of the assessment of the coordination of activities between
the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors, the General Director and
shareholders

In 2024, the Audit Committee received close coordination and favorable
conditions to perform its duties from the Board of Directors, the Board of
General Directors and the Company's management staff, through the provision
of complete reports and documents related to the Company's governance
situation, production and business activities, and financial situation of the
Company.

7. Remuneration, operating expenses and other benefits of the Audit
Committee and each member of the Audit Committee

Remuneration, operating expenses and other benefits of the Audit
Committee and each member of the Audit Committee are implemented in
accordance with the Enterprise Law and the Company Charter. Detailed
information is presented in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements
for 2024.

8. Recommendation:

- The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the list of independent
auditors for the 2025 fiscal year as proposed by the Audit Committee.

- The company regularly updates and improves the system of internal
administrative, management and operational documents; processes in production
and business activities to standardize operations and enhance internal control
activities.

- Review assessed and monitored risks, update to improve the company's
business risk management processes.




- Strengthen market research, search for new projects, regularly improve
the quality of the CCIS system to strengthen management and increasingly
improve the efficiency of the Company's production and business activities.

- Strengthen financial work: control costs, cash flow, monthly payment of

electricity and water bills at Enterprises, Branches, control import and export of
materials,

- Focus on training high-quality human resources, have a strategy for
training, fostering, building and supplementing a team of leaders and managers
to meet the production and business activities of the Company.

- Strengthen exchanges between independent Board members and the
Board of General Directors to enhance the independent Board of Directors’
members' critical role, increase supervision, and minimize risks in the
Company's production and business activities; actively exchanging information
through regular meetings of the Board of Directors, meetings of the Board of
General Directors, and other ad hoc meetings to closely follow the Company's
business and financial situation.

9. Directions and tasks of the Audit Committee in 2025

- Perform well the functions and tasks of the Audit Committee in
accordance with the provisions of law and the Company Charter.

- Regularly update the situation as well as legal regulations to advise the
Board of Directors to issue and amend governance regulations as well as
policies, rules and regulations to ensure the entire company's operations are in
accordance with the law and the Company's Charter.

- Regularly monitor the operations of the Company and its Enterprises
and Branches to report and make recommendations to the Board of Directors.
Control is carried out regularly and suddenly when requested by the Board of
Directors.

- Direct the Internal Audit Board to effectively implement the 2025
Internal Audit Plan approved by the Company's Board of Directors.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval of the report./.

FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN

(Signed )
Ta Van Son




CONG TY CO PHAN DIEN NUGC LAP MAY HAI PHONG

HAIPHONG ELECTRICITY WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY JSC
D/c: S8 34 dudng Thién Li, P. An Duong, Q. Lé Chan, TP. Hai Phang, Viét Nam Tel: 0225.3856 209
Add: No.34 Thien Loi Street, An Duong Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City, Vietnam Fax: 0225.3785 759
Website: www.diennuochp.com.vn * Email: dnc@diennuachp.com.vn * M ching khodn/Stock symbol: DNC Hotline: 1900588802

f ROERNOT Hai Phong, March 15, 2025.

REPORT

~“AND ORIENTATION AND STRATEGY FOR 2025

Respectfully submit to: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors reports to the
General Meeting of Shareholders on the Board of Directors' performance in 2024 and the
orientation and strategy for 2025 as follows::

PART I. REPORT ON ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024
1. General assessment of the Board of Directors' activities in 2024:

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, the Charter of Organization
and Operation, and the Company's Internal Governance Regulations. In 2024, the Board
of Directors successfully organized the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders, held 05
(five) regular Board of Directors meetings to focus on resolving issues under the
authority of the Board of Directors and key issues related to the Company's business
operations, such as directing the implementation of the 2024 Production and Business
Plan as approved by the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders; Implementing the
Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders; At the same time, directing the
Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Board to monitor and inspect the Company's
internal control system and risk management; Directing the Executive Board in
implementing the Resolution of the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board
of Directors in 2024. The Resolutions and decisions agreed upon by the Board of
Directors are important orientations to help the Executive Board organize the
implementation of production and business activities Hai Phong Electricity Water
Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company to develop sustainably and effectively.

2. Periodical activities of the Board of Directors in 2024

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 05 periodical meetings to approve important
issues, providing directions for the Company's production and business activities for the
Board of Directors to implement specifically as follows:

2.1. Meeting 1 (15th time, term 2021-2026), on January 25, 2024, approved the
following contents: Report on business and production results, financial performance
results in the fourth quarter of 2023 and the whole year of 2023. Business and production

plan for 2024 and the first quarter of 2024. Plan for the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders; Date of closing the list of shareholders entitled to attend the 2024 Annual
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General Meeting of Shareholders; Date of closing the list of shareholders entitled to
receive the second dividend in 2023. Internal audit plan for 2024; Consideration of
additional salary from business performance in 2023 for managers in the Company's
Executive Board.

2.2. Meeting 2 (16th time, term 2021-2026), on March 12, 2024 approved the
following contents: Program and documents for the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders; Expected personnel at the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders:
Presidium; Qualification Checking Committee, Vote Counting Committee, Secretariat;
Personnel work: Re-appointment of the positions of General Director, Deputy General
Director, Chief Accountant; Sending a working delegation to attend the Workshop on
effective energy saving solutions and renewable energy development in Japan.

2.3. Meeting 3 (/7th time, term 2021-2026), on April 24, 2024 approved the
following contents: Report on production and business results for the first quarter,
Production and business plan for the second quarter of 2024. Report on financial
performance results for the first quarter of 2024; Personnel work: Re-appointment of the
Director of An Duong Electricity Enterprise.

2.4. Meeting 4 (18th time, term 2021-2026), on August 06, 2024 approved the
following contents: Report on production and business results, financial performance
results in the second quarter and the first 6 months of 2024 and the Plan for the third
quarter of 2024; Report on the implementation of the remote data transmission electronic
meter project. Plan to receive the Ecopark Vinh - Nghe An Project's power system,
establish Nghe An Branch; Report on the activities of the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit Committee in the first 6 months of 2024; Personnel work: Re-appointment
of the Director of Vinh Bao Power Enterprise; Plan for interim dividend payment for the
first period of 2024.

2.5. Meeting 5 (19th time, term 2021-2026), on October 30, 2024, approved the
following contents: Report on production and business results for the third quarter of
2024, Production and business plan for the fourth quarter of 2024; Report on financial
performance results for the third quarter of 2024 and the first 9 months of 2024; Draft
Production and business plan for 2025.

3. Activities of independent Board members and Audit Committee

- The Audit Committee operates according to the Audit Committee's Operating
Regulations under Decision No. 17/QD-HDQT dated May 10, 2021.

- Mr. Ta Van Son - an independent member of the Board of Directors, Chairman of
the Audit Committee, has participated in the activities of the Board of Directors to
supervise, advise and provide independent opinions on issues in the Company's
production and business activities. At the same time, he directly directs and manages all
activities of the Audit Committee.

- The Audit Committee (UBKT) has monitored the integrity of the Company's
financial statements and official announcements related to the Company's financial
results; reviewed the Internal Control and Risk Management system; reviewed
transactions with related parties under the approval authority of the Board of Directors or
the General Meeting of Shareholders and made recommendations on transactions
requiring approval by the Board of Directors or the General Meeting of Shareholders;
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supervised the Company's internal audit department; supervised to ensure that the
Company complies with the provisions of the Law, requirements of the regulatory agency
and other internal regulations of the Company; regularly monitored, advised and
evaluated the independence and objectivity of the Company's production and business
activities.

- In 2024, the Audit Committee coordinated with specialized departments to
resolve and correct financial management violations at Thuy Nguyen Power Plant;
violations in electricity business procedures at Ha Long Branch. The Audit Committee
recommended that the Board of Directors direct the Board of Directors to take measures
to correct loopholes and shortcomings.

4. Evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors and subcommittees
under the Board of Directors

4.1 Performance of the Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors has seriously implemented the Resolutions of the 2024
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Resolutions of the Board of Directors and
performed its functions and duties in accordance with the provisions of the Law and the
Company's Charter.

- Under the increasingly fierce competition in the electricity business sector, while
facing negative impacts in the world, many difficult challenges have been created in
business operations. With practical and specific solutions, the Board of Directors has
directed the leaders, employees of the functional departments, and workers in the
Company to strive day and night to complete the set plan targets; Review, develop, and
adjust new regulations and instructions in accordance with the actual business situation of
the Company in 2024.

- Furthermore, the Board of Directors always closely follows the contents of the
Resolution of the Board of Directors to organize the excellent implementation of the
2024 Production and Business Plan, the core task of the Company. Therefore, the
Company's production and business process is always stable and developing, all targets
are achieved and exceeded the plan set by the 2024 Shareholders' Meeting, specifically as
follows:

* Business and production results in 2024:

Year 2024 Comparison (%)
Implemen
No. Target tlzegzi; iz Implementat 2:; , | THKH
ion 2023 2024
1| Total revenue (VND million) | 802483 | 1.006.000 |  939.065| 117| B
1 | Electricity business 767375 985.500| 906404 118 2
2 | Water business 7.103 12.500 17476 | 102 | 140
3| Other revenue | 18005 8000|  1s.185| 82| 185
I | Electricity output (millionkWh) |~ 337| 408} 374} 111) 92
II_| Water output (m’) 1.043.000 |  870.000 | 1.017.100| 98] 117
_IV_| Electricity customers | 84243 | 50199 | 107 |
V | Water customers ol a686| __4715| 102
VI |Lossratio
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| Power loss(%) I 40 1] of o1

_VII | Profit before tax (VND million) |  48.075 50.500 53.194| 111] 106
Payable to the State budget 20.500 116 105
_IX | Charter capital (VND billion) | 64,2 80,2 802| 125] 100
X | Dividend ratio
- Cash =25% > 20% =25%
- Bonus shares A 28]  =xde) |
Average salary (VND 13,8 110 101

12,6 13.9

XIII | million/person/month)

- In 2024, the world situation continues to evolve in a complex and unpredictable
manner with many risky and uncertain factors. Military conflicts continue to escalate,
strategic competition between major countries becomes increasingly fierce, many
countries strengthen trade protection policies, public debt and budget deficits increase,
the decline of some major economies, and localized disruptions in the global supply
chain have affected world peace, stability and economic growth. In 2024, domestic
electricity prices will be adjusted up once, affecting domestic trade, services, and
production and business activities. In the face of these difficulties, the Board of General
Directors is still determined to complete production and business targets: Revenue
increased by 17%, Profit increased by 11% compared to 2023.

- On September 25, 2024, the Company established Nghe An Branch to receive the
Ecopark Vinh - Nghe An project power system of Viet Lao Economic Cooperation
Corporation.

- Promote the application of information technology in the management and
operation of the Company's production and business activities: Customer care; Zalo
messaging application; Cashless payment of electricity and water bills; Replacing and
converting the remote electronic meter system.

- Financial work is controlled, providing full and timely reporting data, serving the
Board of Leaders well in internal management and administration. Financial reports and
tax reports are strictly implemented in accordance with the law and regulations of the
State. The Company has proactively exploited capital from many different sources with
reasonable interest rates, ensuring timely capital for production, business, investment,
and dividend payment....

- Along with production and business activities, the Company continues to pay
attention to the regime, benefits and income for employees such as increasing salary by
10% compared to 2023, implementing full welfare regime; Recruitment, training to
improve professional qualifications; Organizing tours and summer vacations; Organizing
DNC family festival and improving the quality of the working environment.

4.2 Performance of Internal Audit Board:

- The Internal Audit Board has independently and objectively inspected, evaluated
and consulted on the operating procedures and risk management procedures of Hai Phong
Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company to ensure efficiency, risk
control and high performance in the Company's operations.
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- In 2024, the Internal Audit Board conducted 02 internal audits.:

* Internal audit of investment activities, construction of power lines and
transformer stations in 2023. The Internal Audit Board pointed out a number of
shortcomings and made recommendations to the Board of General Directors: Develop
forms, processes and regulations on management and archiving of records; Speed up the
completion of design documents, construction drawings and project estimates after
having site plan and connection location documents; Enhance responsibility and perform
well the supervision tasks of the investor; Review the time of supply and quality of
materials and equipment for construction works to ensure technical requirements; Speed
up the construction progress of assigned works, ensuring compliance with technical and
safety requirements according to regulations; Strictly implement regulations on
construction quality management, regulations on financial management and project
settlement; Urge the project settlement to ensure compliance with procedures and time
according to regulations.

* Internal audit of production and business activities from January 2023 to
October 31, 2024 of Ecopark Hung Yen Branch. The Internal Audit Board pointed out a
number of shortcomings and made recommendations to the Board of General Directors:
Strengthen management of the Branch; The functional departments direct and guide the
Branch to properly implement the Company's regulations.

PART II. ORIENTATION AND STRATEGY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR 2025

- Strictly implement the rights and obligations of the Board of Directors according
to the Law and the Company Charter. Fully comply with all regulations on corporate
governance and information disclosure of the State Securities Commission, Hanoi Stock
Exchange and competent authorities.

- The Board of Directors fully supervises the activities of the Board of General
Directors in implementing the 2025 Business Plan to ensure that decisions on the
Company's operations comply with the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as well as legal regulations.

- In 2025, Vietnam's economy will enter a new era of take-off. With those
foundations and changing State policies, the Board of Directors will promote the strength
of solidarity, the spirit of innovation, constant innovation, high determination, great
efforts, and drastic actions according to the theme "Discipline, responsibility;
streamlining, efficiency; cost reduction”. To achieve the basic targets for 2025, the
Board of Directors sets out specific operational directions as follows:

1. Company Governance Orientation:

- The Board of Directors is constantly planning strategies, plans and goals for the
Company's development.

- The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee regularly monitor the production
and business operations of the Board of General Directors and its subsidiaries. The Board of
General Directors strictly complies with the provisions of the Law, the Charter and the
decisions of the Board of Directors so that the Company can maximize the capacity of its
staff.
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- Committed to preserving and developing capital and ensuring the rights of
investors.

- Always improve management capacity, reduce costs.

- Risk management: Strengthen management, inspection and supervision of
activities of Departments, Enterprises and Branches to evaluate implementation results,
develop quarterly and annual production and business plans for the Company in 2025 in
line with reality.

2. Orientation of streamlining the apparatus and training of leaders

- The Board of Directors studies and orients the adjustment of the Company's
business organization and operation to suit the changes in the State's administrative
boundaries.

- The Company continues to focus on internal training, mobilizing and appointing a
number of positions to supplement the team of leaders and managers to meet the
Company's production and business activities.

- Strengthen training on customer communication skills and professional customer
care for the Company's staff.

3. Financial Management Strategy

- Expected to increase the Company's charter capital by 25% in 2025.

- Estimated cost of investment capital for production and business in 2025: 41
billion dong.

- Reduce unnecessary costs, focus on investment costs for production and business
and expand the market..

4. Business location development strategy

- Strengthen brand development, affirm reputation in the market; focus on the
Company's main business field "electricity business management".

- Continue to expand business areas through business cooperation contracts with
large corporations to continue to reach out to other provinces and cities nationwide with
the sustainable development motto of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly
Joint Stock Company.

- Determined to make a breakthrough in technology investment in electricity
metering equipment to ensure customer benefits.

5. Production and business strategy in 2025
* Economic target in 2025:

No. Target TH 2024 KH 2025
1| Total revenue (VND million) | 939.065 1.200.000 |
I | Electricity business 906.764 |  1.164.500
2| Water business oo 17476 @ 19500) 0 112
3 |Othersewene | 2 1483 16000 =~ 105
Il | Electricity output (millionkWh) [~ 374|
I | Wateroutput(m®) | 1017.100| 1127000
IV | Number of customers 95.000 102.000| 107
__V__| Power loss ratio (%) 41| 3,9
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| Watertossratio%) [ 51l 46] 5
Profit before tax (VND million) | 53.194 56.000 105
Payable to the State budget (VND 24.000 112

i 21.470
______ IX | Charter capital (VND billion) | 802 = 1003 = 125

Dividend ratio
- Cash =250 > 20
- Bonus shares: =259, =95

XI | Number of employees 161 | 160 99
Average salary (VND 13.9 15.0

XII | million/person/month) ; 108

* Investment in developing the Company's power grid system:

- Constructing 12 new substations, with a total capacity of 7,350 KVA; Increasing
the capacity of 21 substations, with an additional capacity of 4,510 KVA; Adding,
replacing, and renovating the low-voltage power line system of substations: 22.5 km;
Adding and replacing the power pole system: 550 poles.

- Replacing electric meters: 26,500 units, of which 25,000 are electronic telemeters
and 1,500 are induction electric meters.

6. General assessment

- During its operations, the Board of Directors has always strictly complied with
the provisions of the Law and the Company's Charter. With the Board of Directors'
duties, it has implemented the Resolution of the 2024 Shareholders' Meeting with good
results. In 2024, the members of the Board of Directors have also demonstrated
innovation, creativity, and high determination in directing and operating the Company's
operations in accordance with the development orientation and for the benefit of
shareholders; Building a sustainable Company that adapts to a highly competitive market.

- With management and operation experience and especially with the trust and
support of our shareholders, we believe that in 2025, the Company will have many better
results.

- On behalf of the Board of Directors of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine
Assembly Joint Stock Company, the Chairman of the Board of Directors sincerely thanks
shareholders for always being attached and accompanying the Company in the past time
and hopes to continue to receive more support and attention from shareholders in the
future.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval of the full text of the Report./.

Recipients: FOR BOARD (.)F DIRECTORS
- DNC shareholders Chairman
- Board of Directors, Audit Commitiee,
- CBTT; (Signed and sealed)
- Save Company Office.
Do Huy Dat
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S HDOT Hai Phong, March 17, 2025

STATEMENT

ingthe report on the settlement of the Board of Directors'

"_'-'/ 2024 and the Board of Directors' remuneration payment
plan in 2025

Respectfully submit to: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises dated June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Hai Phong Electricity Water
Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders;

Based on the Company's audited Financial Statements for 2024 and the
Company's Business Production Plan for 2025.

The Board of Directors of the Company respectfully submits to the 2025
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the 2024 Board of Directors'
remuneration settlement and the 2025 Board of Directors' remuneration payment
plan as follows:

1/ Settlement of Board of Directors' remuneration in 2024:

- Board of Directors' remuneration: 1.014.000.000, dong
(Amount in words: One billion, fourteen million dong only).
2/ Board of Directors’ remuneration payment plan in 2025:

- Board of Directors' remuneration: 1.104.000.000, dong

(Amount in words.: One billion, one hundred and four million dong only).

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval./.

_ FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RECiPIEI’!fS.' CHAIRMAN

- Company Shareholders;
- Board of Directors, Audit Committee;

- CBTT: (Signed and sealed)

- Save Company Office.
Do Huy Dat
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SHDOT Hai Phong, March 44 , 2025
X ' STATEMENT
A K G THE PLAN TO INCREASE CHARTER CAPITAL

LT Rk :
0: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

-Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 of the National

Assembly.

-Pursuant to Decree 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government

detailing and guiding the implementation of a number of articles of the Securities Law.

-Pursuant to Minutes No. 02/BB-HPQT of the Company's Board of Directors dated

February 18, 2025

-Based on the actual situation and audited 2024 Financial Statement.
The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the Plan to

increase charter capital in 2025 by 25% by paying dividends in shares from the remaining
after-tax profit in 2024 as follows:

1. Expected source of capital: From the Company's 33.907,765.215 dong
remaining undistributed after-tax profit in 2024:

2. Registered charter capital: 80.277.800,000 dong
3. Total expected issuance value at par value: 20.069.450,000 dong
4. The company plans to issue shares to pay 2,006,945 shares

dividends to the Company's existing shareholders in
the amount of:
5. Expected increase in charter capital value: 100,347,250,000 dong

6. Expected time of implementation: Quarter I11 2025

7. The company plans to issue: 2,006,945 shares to pay dividends to the company's
existing shareholders. The par value of the shares is 10,000 VND/share.

8. Plan for handling fractional shares: The number of shares issued to each shareholder
will be rounded down to the nearest unit, and the decimal number of fractional shares (if
any) will be canceled.

9. Assign the Board of Directors to be responsible for issuing 2.006,945 shares to the State
Securities Commission in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Law, reporting
the results of the share issuance. Amending the content of the Company Charter (Clause
1. Article 6, stipulating the Charter Capital and the number of shares) and at the same time
carrying out the procedures to increase the Charter Capital with the Department of Finance
of Hai Phong City after having the results of the share issuance in accordance with the
provisions of the Enterprise Law.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and
decision.
FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman of Board of Directors

Do Huy Dat
(signed and sealed)
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HDOT Hai Phong, March 17, 2025

STATEMENT
2 selection of an independent auditing company to audit the
Company's financial statements for 2025

Respectfully submit to: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises dated June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the Law on Securities dated November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to Decision No. 2730/OD-BTC dated November 15, 2024 of the
Ministry of Finance on approving auditing enterprises and practicing auditors to
audit public interest entities in 2025.

Pursuant to Decision No. 1264/QD-UBCK dated November 19, 2024 of the

State Securities Commission on approving auditing organizations and practicing
auditors to audit public interest entities in the securities sector in 20235.

The Board of Directors of the Company respectfully submits to the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to authorize the Board of Directors to
select an independent auditing unit to audit the Company's 2025 Financial
Statements as follows:

VACO AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

VACO Auditing Company Limited meets the following conditions and
criteria::

- Approved by the State Securities Commission - Ministry of Finance,
auditing organizations and practicing auditors are allowed to audit public interest
entities in the securities sector in 2025..

- Reputable and quality Auditing.

- Reasonable audit fees.
Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration

and approval./.
Recipients: FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Company Shareholders;
- Bga:f G;Dirz(:ofs, j:ga’i! Committee; CHAIRMAN
- CBIT; _
- Save Company Office. (Signed and sealed)

Do Huy Dat
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Number: A% /TTr-HPQT Hai Phong, March 12, 2025
STATEMENT

Statement ""Regarding amendment of Clause 3, Article 2 and Clause 1, Article 6 -
Company Charter

Respectfully submit to: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

- Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company issued on April 01, 2023;

- Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 issued on June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No.
02/NQ-DHDCD dated April 06, 2024 approving Plan for issuing shares to increase
Charter Capital in 2024 from undistributed after-tax profits in 2022, 2023 for existing
shareholders.

- Pursuant to Clause 5 Article 3 of Resolution No. 1232/NQ-UBTVQH approved
by the National Assembly Standing Committee on October 24, 2024 on the
arrangement of district and commune-level administrative units of Hai Phong city for
the period 2023 - 2025.

The Board of Directors of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly
Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval of amendments to the following contents:
1. Date of amendment of the charter: General Meeting of Shareholders approved on
April 05, 2025
2. Content of the amended charter:

Article,
Clause, Contents of current Charter Content of amendment
Section
3. The Company's registered head | 3. The Company's registered head
office is: office is:
Clause )
- Head office address: No. 34 |- Head office address: No. 34 Thien
_3" Thien Loi Street, Nghia Xa Ward, | Loi Street, An Duong Ward, Le Chan
RFeBle Le Chan District, Hai Phong City, | District, Hai Phong City, Vietnam.
Vietnam.




Clause 1
Article 6

1. The Company's charter capital
is64.222.580.000 dong.

The total charter capital of the
Company is divided into
6.422.258 shares.

1. The Company's charter capital is
80.277.800.000 dong.

The total charter capital of the
Company is divided into 8.027.780

shares.

3. In addition to the main contents drafted above, other contents are kept intact as the

current Charter.
4. Assign the Legal Representative of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly

Joint Stock Company to complete and sign the new Charter.
Respectfully submit to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval.!




HAI PHONG ELECTRICITY SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

WATER MACHINE ASSEMBLY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MINUTES
OF VOTES ON VOTING ISSUES
At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14, dated June 17, 2020.

Pursuant to Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH 14, dated November 26, 2019.

Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Hai Phong Electricity
Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to Decision No. 02/QD-HDQT dated February 20, 2025 "Regarding the
establishment of Organizing Committee, Qualification Checking Committee, Vote
Counting Committee, Secretariat of the 2025 General Meeting of Shareholders" of the
Board of Directors of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company.

The Vote Counting Committee at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Hai Phong Electricity Water Machine Assembly Joint Stock
Company held on April 05, 2025, at the Head office of Hai Phong Electricity Water
Machine Assembly Joint Stock Company - Address: No. 34 Thien Loi Street, An
Duong Ward, Le Chan District, Hai Phong City, includes the following names:

1. Mr. Tran Van Chuyen - Head of the Committee

2. Mr. Vo Ngoc Anh - Deputy Head of the Committee
3. Ms. Mai Thi Thanh Ha - Member

4. Mr. Vu Ngoc Dinh - Member

5. Ms. Le Thi Minh Hang - Member

The Vote Counting Committee reports the vote counting results on the
contents of the shareholder's opinion at the meeting as follows:

1. Total number of votes issued: 45 votes, representing 7.612.371 shares,
accounting for 100% of the number of voting shares attending the meeting.

2. Total number of votes received: 45 votes, representing 7.612.371 shares,
accounting for 100% of the number of voting shares attending the meeting.

Voting ratio:

Agree Disagree
No. Voting contents Number of o, | Number of
i Ratio %
s held | TR kel |
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Report on production and
business results in 2024,
production and business plan
in 2025

7.612.371 100

Audited financial statements
2 for 2024 7.612.371 100

Report on activities of the
3 |Audit Committee in 2024, 7.612.371 100
2025 task orientation

Report on activities of the
4 | Board of Directors in 2024, | 7.612.371 100
2025 task orientation

Report on  the  profit
5 |distribution and dividend | 7.612.371 100
payment plan for 2024

Report on Board of Directors'
remuneration in 2024 and
g Board of Directors' e 100

remuneration plan in 2025

Plan to increase charter capital

7 i 2025 7.612.371 100
Selection of an independent

g auditing {fompany to audit Fhe 7612371 100
Company's financial
statements for 2025
Statement "Regarding

9 amendment of Clause 3, 7612371 100

Article 2 and Clause 1, Article
6 - Company Charter”

The 2025 Annual General
Meeting of  Shareholders
authorizes the Board of
Directors of Hai Phong
10 | Electricity Water Machine | 7.612.371 100
Assembly Joint Stock
Company to implement the
Resolution based on the
content.

This Minutes was prepared at 10:30 a.m. on April 05, 2025. The members of
the Vote Counting Committee signed below and are responsible for the legality of
this Minutes.
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MEMBERS

Vu Ngoc Dinh

Le Thi Minh Hang

HEAD OF THE COMMITTEE

TW
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